
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit Committee

Date: Wednesday, 23rd October, 2019
Time: 6.30 pm

Place: Committee Room 1 - Civic Suite
Contact: Colin Gamble (Head of Democratic Services) 

Email: committeesection@southend.gov.uk 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 24th July, 2019 

4  Deloitte: Annual Audit Letter, Audit for the year ended 31 March 2019 

Report of the Executive Director (Finance and Resources)

5  Control Environment Assurance 

Report of the Executive Director (Finance and Resources)

6  A Simple and Effective Governance Framework 

Report of the Executive Director (Legal & Democratic Services)

7  Internal Audit Service Quarterly Performance Report 

Report of the Executive Director (Finance and Resources)

8  Information Item 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum

 Audit Committee Update, Helping Audit Committees to Be Effective

9  Exclusion of the Public 

To agree that, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the item of business set out below on 
the grounds that it will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act, and that the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.

Public Document Pack



10  Control Environment Assurance - Confidential Appendix 

Members:

Cllr P Collins (Chair), Cllr L Burton (Vice-Chair), Cllr B Ayling, Cllr T Cox, Cllr M Davidson, 
Cllr N Folkard, Cllr S Habermel, Cllr M Kelly, Cllr I Shead and K Pandya



SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Meeting of Audit Committee

Date: Wednesday, 24th July, 2019
Place: Committee Room 1 - Civic Suite

Present: Councillor P Collins (Chair)
Councillors L Burton (Vice-Chair), A Bright*, M Davidson, N Folkard, 
S Habermel, M Kelly, I Shead and K Pandya
*Substitute in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 31.

In Attendance: J Chesterton, A Barnes, J Ruffle, I Ambrose, C Fozzard, S Putt, 
F Abbott, E Allen, C Wisdom (Deloitte) and A Kleiman (Deloitte)

Start/End Time: 6.30 pm  - 8.15 pm

252  Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor T Cox (substitute Cllr A 
Bright) and Councillor B Ayling (no substitute).

253  Declarations of Interest 

The following declaration of interest was made at this meeting:

(a) Councillor Davidson – agenda item Agenda item 9 (Adoption of the Annual 
Governance Statement 2018/19 and Statement of Accounts) – Non-
pecuniary interest: Non-Executive Director of South Essex Homes. 

254  Minutes of the Meeting held on 27th March 2019 

Resolved:

That the Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 27th March, 2019 be 
confirmed as a correct record and signed.

255  Teachers Pension Return 2017/18 - Progress report 

The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director (Transformation) 
which updated the Committee on the reasons and actions taken to address 
questions raised by Members of the Committee at the meeting held in March 
2019, with regard to teachers’ pensions reconciliations (Minute 798 refers). 

Resolved:

To note the comments and assurances provided by officers that processes are 
in place to mitigate concerns going forward with regard to the Teachers 
Pensions Return external audit certification arrangements.

1

3



256  Internal Audit Service, Quarterly Performance Report 2018/19 

The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director (Finance & 
Resources) which updated the Committee on progress made in delivering the 
Internal Audit Strategy for 2018/19.

The Committee asked a number of questions, which were responded to by 
officers. 

With reference to Appendix 1 and the decisions not to progress the audit of the 
Virtual School, deferred due to external experts undertaking the independent 
peer review, the Head of Internal Audit confirmed that, to help assurance, he 
would bring the peer review report to the next meeting of the Committee.

With reference to Appendix 2b, Direct Payment Support Services Contract 
Management, the Committee asked that the actions taken with regard to 
contract monitoring be reported to the next meeting of the Committee by the 
Interim Director Adult Social Care.

With reference to Appendix 2c, South East Active Travel Programme 
governance arrangements, the Head of Internal Audit said that he would share 
the results of the full audit, when available and would provide feedback to the 
Committee at the next meeting.

With regard to Appendix 2d, Audits Revisited, Unit 4 Business World System 
Access Controls, and that the overarching IT security policies still requiring 
approval by the Council’s SIRO, the Strategic Director (Transformation) is to 
provide a written response to the Committee on the position before the next 
meeting.

In response to questions to the responses to the stakeholder survey, detailed at 
Appendix 3, and the use of ‘survey monkey’, the Head of Internal Audit said 
that he would review the survey approach (but still in electronic format) to 
hopefully increase responses. 

Resolved:

That the progress made in delivering the 2018/19 Internal Audit Strategy, be 
noted. 

257  Head of Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19 

The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director (Finance and 
Resources) providing the following for the 2018/19 financial year:

 the rationale for and an audit opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
Southend-on-Sea Borough Council's (the Council's) risk management, 
control and governance processes; and

 a statement on conformance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (the Standards) and the results of the Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme.

2



The Committee asked a number of questions which were responded to by 
officers.

On behalf of the Committee, the Chair thanked officers for the report and the 
successful progress on delivering the Annual Audit Plan.

Resolved:

That the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Report for 2018/19, be accepted.

258  Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate, Annual Report for 2018/19 

The Strategic Director (Finance & Resources) advised the Chair that he had 
been notified earlier that day that no one from the Counter Fraud & 
Investigation Team was available to attend the meeting to answer questions of 
the Counter Fraud Strategy and work programme for 2018/19. The Chair and 
Committee Members expressed their concerns and asked that these be 
conveyed to the Counter Fraud & Investigation Team. 

The Strategic Director (Finance & Resources) advised that, separately to this, 
the Council is reviewing its counter fraud policy and procedures and that a 
report will be submitted to Cabinet at its meeting in September and to the Audit 
Committee in October.  He also advised that there are on-going discussions 
with Thurrock Council about the costs and value for money of the service. 

Resolved:

That the item be withdrawn and the annual performance report be considered 
at the next meeting of the Committee. 

259  Deloittes: Final Report to Those Charged With Governance 2018/19 

The Committee considered a report of the External Auditor summarising the 
results of the work completed to date for the 2018/19 financial year with regard 
to:

 The opinion on the Statement of Accounts; and
 The conclusion on the adequacy of the Council’s arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources (the VFM 
conclusion).

In introducing the report the External Auditor Partner, Craig Wisdom, updated 
the Committee to say it was rare to find a finance team so well prepared for 
audit with all evidence readily available.  He praised the early engagement and 
pre-planning that had taken place.

The Committee asked a number of questions which were responded to by the 
External Auditor and officers.

On behalf of the Committee, the Chair thanked officers for the successful audit 
and the smooth transition made to the new team of auditors. The plan is for the 
audit to be formally ‘signed off’ by the end of the week.

3



Resolved:

That the report on the audit for the year ended 31st March 2019, be accepted.

260  Adoption of the Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 and Statement 
of Accounts 2018/19 

The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director (Finance and 
Resources) which presented:

 the Annual Governance Statement for 2018/19, together with the actions 
for 2019/20 and an update on progress made with regard to the 2018/19 
action plan; and 

 the Statement of Accounts for 2018/19, for adoption.

The Committee asked a number of questions which were responded to by the 
External Auditor and officers. On behalf of the Committee the Chair thanked the 
Head of Corporate Finance and his team for all their hard work. The Chair also 
wished Mr Ambrose every success in his new role at the London Borough of 
Redbridge. 

Resolved:

1. That subject to any further views expressed by External Audit, the Annual 
Governance Statement for 2018/19 be approved and recommended to the 
Leader of the Council and Chief Executive for authorisation and signature.

2. That the Statement of Accounts 2018/19 be adopted and approved for 
publication. 

261  Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate, Counter Fraud Plan and 
Strategy for 2019/20 

Resolved:

That in line with Minute 258 the item be withdrawn and the Counter Fraud & 
Investigation Strategy and work programme for 2019/20 be considered at the 
next meeting of the Committee. 

262  Audit Committee Self-Assessment 

The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director (Finance and 
Resources). This presented the findings of the self-assessment of good 
practice undertaken at the end of 2018/19, as detailed at Appendix 1 to the 
report. Appendix 2 to the report set out the proposed actions that could be 
undertaken to enhance the current arrangements of the Audit Committee, 
enabling it to discharge its responsibilities as effectively as possible, meeting 
best practice expectations.

The Chair highlighted the recommendation that the Audit Committee produce 
an annual report for 2019/20 which was fully supported as this will outline its 
work for Full Council. He also highlighted that there will be a self-evaluation 
circulated to the Committee members which will enable members to highlight 
their skills and training needs. This will be sent to substitutes and those who 

4



were substitutes at meetings in the previous municipal year (and who are still 
Councillors). 

The Strategic Director (Finance and Resources) also confirmed the intention to 
run a training session for Committee members later in the year. This training 
will be made available to all Councillors.

Resolved:

To note the results of the self-assessment against good practice undertaken at 
the end of 2018/19 and the actions detailed at Appendix 2 to the report, be 
approved. 

263  Information Item 

The Committee received and noted the following information item:

 Audit Committee Update – helping audit committees to be effective – Issue 
28: The Audit Committee Role in Supporting Counter Fraud and Anti-
corruption (March 2019)

Chair:

5



This page is intentionally left blank



Deloitte: Annual Audit Letter Page 1 of 2

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To present the External Auditor’s Annual Audit Letter for 2018/19 to the Audit 
Committee.

2. Recommendations

2.1 The Audit Committee approves the Annual Audit Letter for 2018/19.

3. Background

3.1 This Annual Audit Letter summarises the key issues arising from the work Deloitte 
have carried out during the year as the Council’s auditors, and highlights the key 
findings that should be considered by the Council. 

3.2 It is intended to be a short document, aimed at the public, to inform them about the 
results of the audit.  It should be posted onto the Council’s website and will also be 
posted on the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) website.

4. Reasons for Recommendations

4.1 The production and publication of an Annual Audit Letter is a requirement 
of the National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice (the Code).

5. Corporate Implications

5.1 Contribution to the Southend 2050 Road Map 
Audit work provides assurance and identifies opportunities for improvements that 
contribute to the delivery of all Southend 2050 outcomes.  

5.2 Financial Implications
The fee for the audit work is set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited and 
agreed with the Council before the start of the audit.  The code audit fee for 
2018/19 was £109,968. Issues arising during the course of the audit can impact on 
the audit fee payable.

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

Report of the Executive Director (Finance and 
Resources) 

to

Audit Committee 
on

23 October 2019

Report prepared by: Andrew Barnes, Head of Internal Audit

  Deloitte: Annual Audit Letter 2018/19
A Part 1 Public Agenda Item

Agenda
Item No.

7

4



Deloitte: Annual Audit Letter Page 2 of 2

5.3 Legal Implications
The Council is required to have an external audit of its activities that complies with 
the requirements of the Code.  By considering this report, the Committee can 
satisfy itself that this requirement is being discharged.

5.4 People Implications
None

5.5 Property implications
None

5.6 Consultation 
The Annual Audit Letter for 2018/19 has been discussed and agreed with the 
Executive Director (Finance and Resources).

5.7 Equalities and Diversity Implications
None  

5.8 Risk Assessment
Periodically considering whether the external auditor is delivering the agreed 
Annual Audit Plan helps mitigate the risk that the Council does not receive an 
external audit service that complies with the requirement of the Code.

5.9 Value for Money 
PSAA sets the fee formula for determining external audit fees for all external 
auditors. 

5.10 Community Safety Implications
None

5.11 Environmental Impact
None

6. Background Papers

 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015

 National Audit Office: Code of Audit Practice

7. Appendices

Appendix 1: Deloitte's Annual Audit Letter 2018/19  

8



Error! No text of specified style in document. | Error! Use the Home tab to apply Section title to the text that you want to appear 

here. 

01/13 Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual Audit Letter on the 

2018/19 External Audit 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council 
October 2019 
 
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only 

 

 

 

9



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

 

2 Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only  

Contents 
 

 

  Page 

1 Letter to Members 3 

2 Key Messages 4 

3 Responsibilities and Scope 5 

4 Audit of the Accounts 6 

5 Value for Money 10 

6 Other Matters 11 

 

 

  

10



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

 

3 Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only  

1. Letter to Members 
 

The Members  

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council 

Civic Centre 

Victoria Avenue 

Southend-on-Sea  

SS2 6ER 

 

14 October 2019 

Dear Sirs 

We have pleasure in setting out this Annual Audit Letter to summarise the key matters arising from 

the work that we have carried out in respect of the audit for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

Although this letter is addressed to the Members of Southend-on-Sea Borough Council (“the 

Authority”), it is also intended to communicate the significant issues we have identified in an 

accessible style to key external stakeholders including members of the public.  The letter will be 

published on the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) website at www.psaa.co.uk and on 

the Authority’s website. 

This letter has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and 

Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd.  This is available from 

www.psaa.co.uk. 

This letter has been discussed and agreed with the Strategic Director (Finance and Resources). A 

copy of the letter will be provided to all Members. 

This is our first year as the external auditor of the Authority following the transition to the PSAA 

contract in 2018/19. We would like to take this opportunity to thank management for the assistance 

and support that enabled this first year of audit to run smoothly. 

Yours faithfully, 

 

 

Craig Wisdom 

Audit Partner 

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP 

St Albans, United Kingdom 

  

11

http://www.psaa.co.uk/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/


Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

 

4 Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only  

2. Key Messages 
Statement of Accounts 

Unqualified opinion 

issued on 30 July 2019 

In 2018/19 the Authority was required to prepare its Statement of Accounts 

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as 

defined in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

Kingdom 2018/19 and other relevant legislation. 

The Statement of Accounts was prepared and audited in accordance with 

the agreed timetable.   

We issued our audit opinion on the financial statements on 30 July 2019.  

Our opinion was not qualified. 

Materiality for the Authority’s accounts was set at £7.4m. 

 

Value for Money (“VfM”) conclusion 

Unqualified conclusion 

issued on 30 July 2019 

We are required to base our statutory VfM conclusion on the criteria 

specified by the National Audit Office. This is an evaluation of whether the 

Authority has in place proper arrangements to ensure properly informed 

decisions were taken and the Authority deployed resources to achieve 

planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.  

We issued an unqualified VFM conclusion on 30 July 2019.  

 

 

Audit findings 

We did not identify any 

significant weaknesses 

in internal control or 

other findings 

International Standards on Auditing (UK) require us to communicate in 

writing to those charged with governance the significant findings from our 

audit. For the avoidance of doubt, in respect of the Authority’s audit for 

2018/19, there were no findings that we brought to the attention of the 

Audit Committee. 

 

Independence and Objectivity 

Independence and 

objectivity 

An analysis of audit fees for the year ended 31 March 2019 is shown in 

Section 6 of this letter. 

In our professional judgement the policies and safeguards in place ensure 

that we are independent within the meaning of all regulatory and 

professional requirements and that the objectivity of the audit partner and 

audit staff is not impaired. 

 

 

12



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

 

5 Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only  

3. Responsibilities and Scope 
Responsibilities of the Authority and Auditors 

The Authority is responsible for maintaining the control environment and accounting records and 

preparing the accounting statements in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 based on IFRS and other relevant legislation.  

We are appointed as the Authority’s independent external auditors by PSAA, the body responsible for 

appointing auditors to local public bodies in England where they have opted into this programme.  

As the Authority’s appointed external auditor, we are responsible for planning and carrying out an audit 

that meets the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice (“the Code”).  Under the 

Code, we have responsibilities in two main areas: 

 auditing the Authority’s accounts; and 

 evaluating whether the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 

and  effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money (“VFM”) conclusion). 

 

The scope of our work 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) as 

adopted by the UK Auditing Practices Board (“APB”).  The audit opinion on the accounts reflects the 

financial reporting framework adopted by the Authority, being the Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 based on IFRS and other relevant legislation.   

We conducted our work on the 2018/19 VFM conclusion in line with guidance issued by the National Audit 

Office in November 2017.  

 

  

13



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

 

6 Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only  

4. Audit of the Accounts 
Statement of Accounts 

Unqualified opinion 

issued on 30 July 

2019 

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Authority’s 2018/19 accounts on 30 July 

2019.  

Before we give our opinion on the accounts, we are required to report to those 

charged with governance (here the Audit Committee) any significant matters 

arising from the audit. To address this requirement, a detailed report was issued 

on 17 July 2019. This was discussed with the members of the Audit Committee on 

25 July 2019. This paper is available to view online as part of the Committee pack 

for that meeting. 

Materiality We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial 

statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both 

in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work. 

Based on our professional judgement, materiality for the Authority’s accounts was 

set at £7.4m which equated to 2% of estimated gross expenditure at the planning 

stage of the audit. Our materiality for the Group Accounts was set at the slightly 

higher level of £7.5m. This benchmark was chosen as the Authority is a non-profit 

organisation and total expenditure is a key measure of financial performance for 

users of the financial statements.  

 

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all 

uncorrected audit differences in excess of £370k, as well as differences below 

that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.  We 

would also report to the Audit Committee on any uncorrected disclosure matters 

identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements. For 

the avoidance of doubt, no such matters were identified in relation to the audit of 

the 2018/19 Statement of Accounts. 

 

Significant Risks Our audit work was designed to specifically address the following significant audit 

risks which are presented in further detail below. Significant audit risks are the 

areas deemed to be those with the greatest potential of being materially incorrect 

in the financial statements and are therefore areas of greater focus for the audit 

team. 

1. Property valuation: Our conclusion in this risk area is that the net book 

value of property assets is not materially misstated. The Council’s valuation 

assumptions are generally reasonable and fall within the expected range. 

There are no other findings to report. 

 Risk identified: 

The Council is required to hold property assets within Property, Plant 

and Equipment and Investment Properties at valuation. The valuations 

are by nature significant estimates which are based on specialist and 

management assumptions and which can be subject to material 

changes in value 

 Deloitte response 

14



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

 

7 Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only  

o We tested the design and implementation of key controls in place 

around the property valuation, including how the Council assures itself 

that there are no material impairments or changes in value for the 

assets not covered by the annual valuation. 

o We obtained an understanding of approach adopted to the valuation, 

including assessing the valuer’s qualifications, objectivity and 

independence and reviewing the methodology used. 

o We tested a sample of inputs to the valuation. 

o We used our valuation specialists, Deloitte Real Estate, to review and 

challenge the appropriateness of the assumptions used in the valuation 

of the Council’s property assets including considering the assumptions 

made of movements between the valuation being performed at earlier 

stages in the year and the year-end. 

o We tested a sample of revalued assets and reperformed the calculation 

of the movement to be recorded in the financial statements to check 

correctly recorded. 

o We considered the impact of uncertainties relating to the UK’s exit 

from the EU upon property valuations in evaluating the property 

valuations and related disclosures. 

 

2. Capital Expenditure: We concluded satisfactorily in this area and there are 

no findings to report. 

 Risk identified 

The Council has a substantial capital programme of £233m over the 

next three years. The capital programme included £50.9m spend in 

2018/19. Determining whether or not expenditure should be 

capitalised can involve judgement as to whether costs should be 

capitalised. The Council has greater flexibility over the use of revenue 

resource compared to capital resource.  There is also, therefore, a 

potential incentive for officers to misclassify revenue expenditure as 

capital. 

 Deloitte response 

o We tested the design and implementation of controls around the 

capitalisation of costs. 

o We selected a sample of capital items in the year to test whether they 

have been appropriately capitalised in accordance with the accounting 

requirements. 

 

3. Management override of controls: We concluded satisfactorily in this area. 

We did not identify any significant bias in the key judgements made by 

management based on work performed. Furthermore, we have not identified 

any instances of management override of controls in relation to the specific 

transactions tested based on work performed. There are no other findings to 

report 

 Risk identified 

This risk area includes the potential for management to use their 

judgement to influence the financial statements as well as the potential 

to override the Council’s controls for specific transactions. 

15



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

 

8 Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only  

 

 Deloitte response 

o We have considered the overall sensitivity of judgements made in 

preparation of the financial statements, and note that: 

 The Council’s results throughout the year did project both 

positive and negative divergences from budgets in operational 

areas. This was closely monitored and, overall, the contingency 

budget was not drawn on. 

 Senior management’s remuneration is not tied to particular 

financial results. 

 

We have considered these factors and other potential sensitivities in 

evaluating the judgements made in the preparation of the financial 

statements.  

o Significant and unusual transactions: We did not identify any 

significant transactions outside the normal course of business or any 

transactions where the business rationale was not clear. 

o Journals: We have performed design and implementation testing of 

the controls in place for journal approval. We have used Spotlight data 

analytics to risk assess journals and select items for detailed follow up 

testing.  The journal entries were selected using computer-assisted 

profiling based on areas which we consider to be of increased interest. 

We have tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the 

general ledger, and other adjustments made in the preparation of 

financial reporting.  

o Accounting estimates: We have performed design and 

implementation testing of the controls over key accounting estimates 

and judgements. We reviewed accounting estimates for biases that 

could result in material misstatements. We note that, overall, the areas 

more subject to estimation in the period were balanced and did not 

indicate a bias to achieve a particular result. We tested accounting 

estimates and judgements, focusing on the areas of greatest 

judgement and value. Our procedures included comparing amounts 

recorded or inputs to estimates to relevant supporting information 

from third party sources. 

Overall opinion We issued an unqualified opinion on the Authority’s 2018/19 accounts on 30 July 

2019, in accordance with the deadline set for local government bodies.  Our 

opinion confirms that the accounts present a true and fair view of the financial 

position of the Authority as at 31 March 2019 and its income and expenditure for 

the year then ended. 

 

Annual Governance Statement and Other Information 

No issues were 

identified in relation 

to this work 

As appointed auditors, we review the Annual Governance Statement (“AGS”) and 

other information presented with the financial statements to check that 

information is consistent with the financial statements. We do not have any 

findings to report in relation to this.  

16



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

 

9 Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only  

Powers and Duties 

We did not receive 

any questions 

about the accounts 

or make any public 

interest reports 

Under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors have specific powers 

and duties, including to give electors the opportunity to raise questions about the 

accounts and to consider and decide upon objections received in relation to the 

accounts.  We did not receive any such questions or objections. 

We have a duty to consider whether to issue a report in the public interest about 

something we believe the Authority should consider, or if the public should know 

about.  

We have not identified any matters that would require us to issue a public 

interest report.  

Whole of Government accounts return 

The Authority is 

below the audit 

threshold 

 

The Authority prepares a consolidation pack to support the production of Whole of 

Government Accounts by HM Treasury. We are not required to review this pack as 

the Authority falls below the threshold where an audit is required. As required by 

the guidance we have confirmed this with the National Audit Office by the 

national deadline of 13 September 2019.  

Audit Certificate 

We have issued our 

certificate 
We issued our certificate on 30 July 2019. The certificate confirms that we have 

concluded the audit for 2018/19 in accordance with the requirements of the Local 

Audit & Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 

 

  

17



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

 

10 Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only  

5. Value for Money 
Background and approach 

We are required to issue a value for money (“VfM”) conclusion within our report on the financial 

statements.  We are required to base our VfM conclusion on criteria specified by the National Audit 

Office (“NAO”) where we are required to be satisfied that proper arrangements have been made to 

secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources. Our assessment is based on 

the following reporting criterion: 

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly 

informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for 

taxpayers and local people.” 

The following sub-criteria are then used to inform and guide our work and inform our overall 

judgement although there is no requirement to separate these nor to report against each sub-

criteria: 

 Informed decision making 

 Sustainable resource deployment 

 Working with partners and other third parties. 

We would emphasise that it is the arrangements in place that we are required to assess, and not 

the actual decisions made by the Authority. 

We planned our local programme of work based on our risk assessment, which was informed by a 

series of risk factors determined by the National Audit Office. 

We did not identify any significant risks as part of our risk assessment. 

The VFM conclusion 

Having performed our work in line with guidance received from the National Audit Office we issued 

an unqualified value for money conclusion for the 2018/19 financial year.   

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

18



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

 

11 Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only  

6. Other Matters 
Reports issued 

Reports issued during the course of the 2018/19 audit included: 

 Audit Fee letter; 

 Annual Audit Plan; 

 The Report to Those Charged with Governance on the 2018/19 audit of the Authority; and 

 This Annual Audit Letter.  

 

 

  

 

 
Analysis of audit fees 

Audit fees charged to date are as follows:   

 2018/19 
 £000 

Scale fees for the audit of the Authority’s annual accounts, VfM conclusion and 
whole of government accounts return 

110 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fee letter 

Audit plan 

Report to those 

charged with 

governance 

Annual Audit Letter 

October 

2019 
July  

2019 

July  

2019 

February 

2019 

 

April 

2018 

 

19



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

 

12 Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only  

Statement of Responsibilities 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by PSAA explains the 

respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body and this report is prepared on the 

basis of, and our audit work is carried out in accordance with, that statement.  

The matters raised in this report are only those that came to our attention during our audit and are 

not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all weaknesses that exist or of all improvements that 

might be made.  You should assess recommendations for improvements for their full implications 

before they are implemented.  In particular, we would emphasise that we are not responsible for the 

adequacy and appropriateness of the national data and methodology supporting our value for money 

conclusion as they are derived solely from the National Audit Office. 

This report has been prepared for the Members, as a body, and we therefore accept responsibility to 

you alone for its contents.  We accept no duty, responsibility or liability to any other party. 

An audit does not provide assurance on the maintenance and integrity of the website, including 

controls used to achieve this, and in particular on whether any changes may have occurred to the 

Annual Audit Letter since first published.  These matters are the responsibility of the Authority but no 

control procedures can provide absolute assurance in this area. 

20



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

 

13 Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

This document is confidential and it is not to be copied or made available to any 

other party. Deloitte LLP does not accept any liability for use of or reliance on the 

contents of this document by any person save by the intended recipient(s) to the 

extent agreed in a Deloitte LLP engagement contract.  

 

If this document contains details of an arrangement that could result in a tax or 

National Insurance saving, no such conditions of confidentiality apply to the details 

of that arrangement (for example, for the purpose of discussion with tax 

authorities). 

 

Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with 

registered number OC303675 and its registered office at 1 New Street Square, 

London, EC4A 3HQ, United Kingdom. 

 

Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom affiliate of Deloitte NSE LLP, a member firm of 

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee 

(“DTTL”). DTTL and each of its member firms are legally separate and independent 

entities. DTTL and Deloitte NSE LLP do not provide services to clients. Please see 

www.deloitte.com/about to learn more about our global network of member firms. 

 

© 2019 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved. 

 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



Control Environment Assurance Report Number

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Report of Executive Director (Finance and Resources)

To

Audit Committee

On
23 October 2019

Report prepared by: Andrew Barnes (Head of Internal Audit) 

Control Environment Assurance

Part 1 (Public Agenda Item) - except for Appendix F which is not for publication by 
virtue of paragraph 7 of Part 1 to Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972

1. Purpose of Report

To update the Audit Committee on the revisions that have been made to the 
Control Environment in respect of Risk Management, Counter-Fraud, Bribery & 
Corruption, Counter Money Laundering, Whistleblowing and the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers.  

2. Recommendations

2.1 That Audit Committee approves the revised Risk Management Policy Statement 
and Strategy (Appendix A, including the action plan included at Appendix 2 of 
that document).

2.2 That Audit Committee approves the revised Counter Fraud, Bribery & 
Corruption Policy and Strategy (Appendix B), the revised Counter Money 
Laundering Policy & Strategy (Appendix C) and the revised Whistleblowing 
Policy (Appendix D).

2.3 That Audit Committee approves the revised Policy and Procedures for 
undertaking Directed Surveillance and the use of Covert Human Intelligence 
Sources (CHIS) (Appendix E – and also the detailed procedures for use of a 
CHIS as set out in confidential Appendix F).

2.4 To note that:
(a) The Council has not used the surveillance powers available to it under RIPA 

between 1 April 2018 and the 31st March 2019 and neither has it used any 
CHIS during this period

(b) Thurrock Council has not used any such powers on behalf of Southend-on- 
Sea Borough Council when undertaking Anti-Fraud work between 1 April 
2018 and the 31st March 2019. 

2.5 To note the staff training undertaken in 2018/19 and proposed for 2019/20 in 
connection with RIPA - also details of the regulation of CCTV activities as 
detailed in the report.

Agenda
Item No.

23

5



Control Environment Assurance Report Number

3. Risk Management

3.1 The Council’s risk policy, strategy and toolkit was last formally reviewed in June 
2015.  As a result of the changes being made to the governance architecture to 
deliver the Southend 2050 Ambition and Outcomes a review of the Council’s 
approach to risk management has been undertaken by the senior officer Good 
Governance Group and the Corporate Management Team (CMT).  

3.2 The Policy Statement and Strategy have, therefore, been reviewed and updated 
to align with changes to Council policy, structures and resources since 2015.  
The review found that while the overall approach to corporate risk is sound, 
some areas required updating and there was a need to update the approach in 
response to the changes that are being implemented to the culture and 
governance arrangements of the Council.  The main points of note are:

 The changes to reflect the new governance arrangements implemented 
by the Council to deliver the 2050 Ambition

 Enhancements to use of risk appetite and tolerance included to reflect a 
desire for the Council to increasingly focus on where it is prepared to take 
risks and exploit opportunities to deliver the desired outcomes

 A simplified scoring system for the risk matrix 
 The roles and responsibilities for groups and individuals have been 

updated.

3.3 The current position in relation to the Council’s approach to risk is that:
 The Corporate Risk Register (CRR) is reported to the Council’s 

Corporate Management Team quarterly and Cabinet every 6 months – it 
is proposed that this continues 

 Risk registers, following the format of the CRR, are included in Service 
Plans – it is proposed that this is updated to reflect the new governance 
arrangements

 Risk registers are included in major council project plans, and the risks 
monitored regularly, although the format may vary, depending on project 
requirements – it is proposed that this continues with the format simplified 
to achieve increased engagement and utilisation

 High level risks are monitored as part of reports to Corporate Delivery 
and Capital Boards – it is proposed that this continues, but with reporting 
to the new governance groups as necessary

 Risk is a regular item at CMT meetings, and is discussed regularly at 
Departmental Management Teams – it is proposed that this continues, 
supported by the risk management resource available. 

3.4 The Cabinet have reviewed the Policy Statement and Strategy (Appendix A), 
prior to further work to shape, disseminate and implement across the Council, in 
accordance with Appendix 2 of the Policy Statement and Strategy. 

24



Control Environment Assurance Report Number

4. Counter-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption, Counter Money Laundering and 
Whistleblowing

4.1 The Counter Fraud, Bribery & Corruption policy and strategy (Appendix B) is 
designed to advise council workers and suppliers on what fraud, bribery and 
corruption is, how to identify it and report it. This policy sets out what the council 
will do to make it the most difficult environment for fraud to occur and the 
responsibility on everyone in the council to find fraud and report it.

4.2 Money laundering is a serious crime and recognised as a ‘critical enabler’ for 
organised criminal gangs and terrorists to benefit from and use for other 
criminality.  Denying criminals the use of their ill-gotten gains disrupts criminality 
and can help law enforcement identify offenders. The Counter Money 
Laundering policy & strategy (Appendix C) is designed to advise council 
workers and suppliers on what money laundering is, how to identify it and report 
it and sets out the action we will take to mitigate the risk that money could be 
laundered through our systems. 

4.3 The Whistleblowing Policy (Appendix D) provides arrangements to raise any 
serious concerns that employees, workers or contractors have about any aspect 
of service provision or the conduct of Councillors, officers of the Council or 
others acting on behalf of the Council.

4.4 The policies have been updated to reflect changes in legislation, reporting 
methods and current best practice.  

4.5 The Council’s counter fraud service has been run in partnership with Thurrock 
Council through the Counter Fraud Investigation Directorate since 2013. 
However the direction that Thurrock Council want to take the Counter Fraud 
Investigation Directorate in, and particularly the resources that they want to 
dedicate into that service to deliver that direction, are no longer consistent with 
the expectations and requirements of Southend Council and therefore the joint 
working has been brought to an end. As a result Southend has taken back the 
staff that were employed by Southend, but shared with Thurrock in their Counter 
Fraud Investigation Directorate, to re-form Southend Council’s own dedicated 
Counter Fraud team, that continues to deliver the service while the specific 
arrangements for the working of the counter fraud service are reviewed over the 
forthcoming period.

5. Directed Covert Surveillance and Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act

5.1 If the Council wants to carry out directed covert surveillance then: 

(a) It must be in connection with the investigation of a criminal offence which 
attracts a maximum custodial sentence of 6 months or more, or involves 
the underage sale of alcohol or tobacco;

(b) It must not be intrusive surveillance (only the Police can carry out 
intrusive surveillance inside a house or vehicle);

25



Control Environment Assurance Report Number

(c) Such surveillance must be properly authorised internally. In particular 
authorising officers must be formally designated and trained – and only 
authorised and trained officers should carry out surveillance; 

(d) A Justice of the Peace must make an Order approving the grant of 
authorisation referred to in (c) above; and

(e) There must be compliance with the Codes of Practice issued by the 
Home Office, the Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office (IPCO) 
(formerly the Office of Surveillance Commissioners OSC) – and the 
Council’s own Policy & Procedures (see 5.3 below).

Covert Human Intelligent Source and Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act

5.2 Similar requirements to those set out in 5.1 above apply if the Council wants to 
use a covert human intelligent source (CHIS). The requirement for the use of 
CHIS is that it relates to the prevention and detection of crime or disorder; there 
is no requirement for the offence to have a 6 month sentence.

Council Policy and Procedures for undertaking Directed Covert Surveillance and the 
use of a CHIS

5.3 In order to ensure that the Council acts legally and properly and complies with 
RIPA, it has put in place “Policy and Procedures for undertaking Directed Covert 
Surveillance and the use of Covert Human Intelligence Sources (CHIS)”.

5.4 The Policy & Procedures are regularly updated to ensure they are fit for purpose 
and incorporate legislative, procedural and staff changes (Appendix E). The 
most significant change is that the detailed procedures for the use of a CHIS are 
now set out in a separate document (confidential Appendix F).  The Policy and 
Procedures also includes a revised section on the use of social media for 
research and investigations (as this has been the focus of IPCO attention) and 
clarification of joint agency surveillance to reflect current practice.

Use of surveillance powers available under RIPA in 2018/19

5.6 The Council has not used the surveillance powers available to it under RIPA 
between 1 April 2018 and the 31st March 2019 and neither has it used any 
CHIS during this period.

5.7 Thurrock Council has not used any such powers on behalf of Southend-on-Sea 
Borough Council when undertaking Anti-Fraud work between 1 April 2018 and 
the 31st March 2019. 

Training

5.8 It is important that Council officers who are, or could be, involved with 
surveillance receive proper training. 

5.9 Annual training was carried out on the 10 December 2018, attended by 39 
members of staff with a focus on awareness of RIPA requirements and also the 
use of social media for research and investigations.

26



Control Environment Assurance Report Number

5.10 In 2019/20 a CHIS training session has already been held with 6 members of 
staff from Regulatory Services and the regular annual training event is planned 
for early December 2019.

CCTV

5.11 The Council’s CCTV System helps to provide a safe and secure environment in 
the Town Centre and other parts of the town covered by the cameras. It 
therefore contributes to the continuing safety and vitality of those areas, for the 
benefit of all those living, working and visiting there.

5.12 The control room is manned twenty-four hours a day 365 days a year by 
Security Industry Authority (SIA) trained operators and is fully compliant with the 
guidelines laid down by the IPCO and the Surveillance Camera Commissioner 
(SCC). 

5.13 The inspections by the OSC (now the IPCO) as referred to in 5.14 (below), have 
always involved a visit to the control room to ensure compliance with the 
guidelines; although it should be noted that overt CCTV does not require a 
formal RIPA authority.  In 2018 the control room was involved in 8566 incidents 
that were covered by CCTV which involved 739 arrests being made. This 
highlights the value of the CCTV System. 

Oversight

5.14 The IPCO provides independent oversight of the use of investigatory powers by 
intelligence agencies, police forces and other public authorities.  The Council is 
subject to inspection by the IPCO to ensure compliance with the statutory 
provisions which govern surveillance.  The Council’s last inspection was in 
August 2016 and was carried out by the former OSC: This presented a very 
positive picture.

 
5.15 It is also important that councillors should review the Council’s use of RIPA and 

its Policies and Procedures on an annual basis; hence the need for this report.

6. Other Options 

None

7. Reasons for Recommendations 

To comply with the Home Office Codes of Practice and IPCO Guidance on 
RIPA.

8. Corporate Implications

8.1 Contribution to Southend 2050 Road Map 

The Corporate Assurance and Risk Framework underpins the operational 
effectiveness of the Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements and helps 
the management of key risks associated with achieving the Council’s Ambition 

27



Control Environment Assurance Report Number

and Outcomes.  Contributing to and monitoring progress with the Corporate Risk 
Register reinforces the effectiveness of these arrangements and assists to 
ensure that Outcomes are delivered.

Work undertaken to reduce fraud and enhance the Council’s anti-fraud and 
corruption culture contributes to the delivery of all Southend 2050 outcomes. 

Sound policies and procedures in respect of surveillance contribute to various 
aspects of the Southend 2050 Road Map, particularly the objective in Safe & Well 
that people in all parts of the Borough feel safe and secure at all times.

8.2 Financial Implications 

The funding of risk management activities across the Council is generally 
contained within individual budgets.

Proactive fraud and corruption work acts as a deterrent against financial 
impropriety and might identify financial loss and loss of assets. Any financial 
implications arising from identifying and managing the fraud risk will be 
considered through the normal financial management processes.  Proactively 
managing fraud risk can result in reduced costs to the Council by reducing 
exposure to potential loss and insurance claims.

8.3 Legal Implications

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 Section 3 requires that:
‘The relevant authority must ensure that is has a sound system of internal control 
which:

 facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its 
aims and objectives

 ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is 
effective

 includes effective arrangements for the management of risk.’
The proposed risk management arrangements ensure that the Council is 
compliant with this requirement.

The Home Office and IPCO provide guidance in respect of RIPA. This report 
has been prepared to ensure compliance with that guidance.

8.4 People Implications 

Failure to manage the corporate risks could have a major impact upon the 
resources available to the Council and the ability to deliver identified outcome 
priorities.  

Where fraud or corruption is proven the Council will:

 take the appropriate action which could include disciplinary proceedings, civil 
law and criminal prosecution

 seek to recover losses using criminal and civil law

28



Control Environment Assurance Report Number

 seek compensation and costs as appropriate.

8.5 Property Implications

None, but identified as part of the corporate and other risk registers.

8.6 Consultation

Internal only

8.7 Equalities and Diversity Implications

None

8.8 Risk Assessment

The report is aimed to enhance the Council’s ability to assess and manage risk in 
achieving its Ambition and Outcomes.   

Failure to operate a strong anti-fraud and corruption culture puts the Council at 
risk of increased financial loss from fraudulent or other criminal activity.  Although 
risk cannot be eliminated from its activities, implementing these strategies will 
enable the Council to manage this more effectively.

Having up to date RIPA Policy and Procedures and a staff training programme, 
ensures any risks associated with surveillance, social media investigations or the 
use of a CHIS are minimised.

8.9 Value for Money

Effective forecasting and timely management of risk is a key factor in preventing 
waste, inefficiency and unnecessary or unplanned use of resource. 

An effective counter fraud and investigation directorate should save the Council 
money by reducing the opportunities to perpetrate fraud, detecting it promptly 
and applying relevant sanctions where it is proven.

8.10 Community Safety Implications

None, but identified as part of the corporate and other risk registers.

8.11 Environmental Impact

None, but identified as part of the corporate and other risk registers.

9. Background Papers

None

29



Control Environment Assurance Report Number

10. Appendices

Appendix A - Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 2019
Appendix B - Revised Counter Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Policy & Strategy
Appendix C - Revised Counter Money Laundering Policy & Strategy
Appendix D - Revised Whistleblowing Policy
Appendix E - Updated Council Policy and Procedures for undertaking Directed 
Surveillance and the use of Covert Human Intelligence Sources 
Appendix F (Part 2) - Detailed Council Procedures for use of Covert Human 
Intelligence Sources (CHIS) 

30



RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
STATEMENT & STRATEGY

Approved by: Next Planned Review: 
Corporate Management Team: 7 August 2019 2021
Cabinet: 17 September 2019

31



2

Risk Management Policy
The focus for Southend Borough Council is set out within the 2050 ambition and in delivering against the 

desired outcomes, to fulfil that ambition, decisions are taken regarding allocation of increasingly finite 

resources.   The Council has needed to become more innovative and commercially minded in order to 

exploit opportunities whilst still operating in an environment where there are high expectations around 

transparency, integrity and accountability.  Delivering value for money remains at the heart of good 

governance in local authorities.

The Council’s Risk Management Framework needs to evolve, along with other elements of the 

governance framework, to support the achievement of the 2050 outcomes.   There are a number of 

core principles at the heart of the new Council’s Risk Management Framework, these include that:

 risk management is a positive value added activity, focused on achievement and successes, not a 

negative bureaucracy – by changing the perception and raising awareness officers will have 

increased confidence when managing operational risks

 all staff are responsible for risk management and resources that support the framework are there to 

‘support and challenge’ not ‘own and do’

 wider Member involvement in identifying and monitoring the most strategic risks the organisation 

faces would add value, whilst the roles of the Audit Committee, Scrutiny and Cabinet are critical to 

robustness of the overall framework

 the Southend 2050 ambition and outcomes need to drive the Council’s budget and financial 

management arrangements, performance management of the outcome delivery plans and risk 

management framework

 by getting the conversations happening with the right people, at the right time and in the right place, 

the required thinking can be applied and the processes to capture, document and report risks will be 

simple and become part of business as usual

 the framework ensures joined up Strategic, Operational, Programme and Project Risk Management 

whilst recognising the differences between them.

32



3

It is important for everyone to recognise that: 

Risk management is not about being ‘risk averse’ – 

it is about being ‘risk aware’.  

Risk is ever present and some amount of risk taking is necessary if the Council is to achieve its ambition.  

In the current climate the council will embark on more risky activities in pursuit of greater outcomes for 

residents, however the actions to mitigate those risks must bring the risk exposure within the appetite 

and tolerance approved by members.  By being ‘risk aware’ the Council is in a better position to 

mitigate threats and take advantage of opportunities.

33



4

The Council will achieve effective Risk Management by:

 implementing this Strategy and a process that is fit for purpose, compliments and strengthens the 

other governance arrangements within the 2050 programme, including assurance and performance 

management processes

 ensuring that the management structure is not a barrier to sharing the ownership of risks or the 

efficiency in the control environment

 equipping managers with the skills and understanding to ensure that robust risk decisions happen 

across the Council

 ensuring a consistent understanding of the organisation’s risk appetite so that effective 

communication, escalation and cascade, exists across the Council 

 acknowledging that risks are increasingly shared across partner organisations, which can increase 

the complexity of analysis and reporting, and also that assurances regarding the level of risk may 

need to be sought from third parties as well as internal sources, and that these bodies may need 

support from the Council to achieve efficient risk management.

We will also annually review the:

 effectiveness of Risk Management activity during the year

 completion of the Risk Management action plan

 approach to ensure it remains in line with good practice.

Every two years we will review and update the formal Policy and Strategy document.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE LEADER

……………………………………….. ……………………………………..

34



5

Risk Management Strategy
Introduction

The Council’s Members and Corporate Management Team recognise:

 the importance of effective mechanisms to identify, analyse, manage and monitor risk and for 

effective channels of communication about risk within the organisation

 their statutory responsibilities for Risk Management particularly in areas where there is a high 

inherent risk such as Health and Safety

 that risks around projects and partnerships must be effectively captured and communicated within 

the risk management framework of the organisation to ensure that a holistic approach to risk 

management is embedded 

 that effective  risk management will help improve the delivery of the outcomes identified in the 

Southend 2050 programme by directing finite Council resources to where they can achieve the most, 

whilst exploiting opportunities to achieve outcomes via more innovative means.

These views are endorsed by the increased focus on the importance of governance frameworks within 

public sector bodies and that the Council has a statutory responsibility to have in place arrangements for 

managing risks, as stated in the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015:

“The relevant body shall be responsible for ensuring that the financial management of the body is 

adequate and effective and that the body has a sound system of internal control which facilitates the 

effective exercise of that body’s functions and which includes the arrangements for the management of 

risk.” 

The Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy provides the foundation on which robust risk 

management activity, supporting the efficient and effective achievement of outcomes and delivery of 

services, will be embedded within business processes and contribute to the effectiveness of the 

governance framework.

More detail to support and guide the organisation in successfully embedding Risk Management will be 

provided within the guidance that will accompany this strategy.

An action plan, covering the planned duration of the Strategy, has been developed to implement the 

strategy and further embed Risk Management into the governance framework of the organisation 

(Appendix 2).

35



6

Definition of Risk

The definition of risk used within the Council is that RISK is ‘The chance of something happening that will 

have an impact (negative = threat or positive = opportunity) on the Council’s ability to successfully deliver 

its approved outcomes.  This includes external and internal, risks and opportunities’.

RISK MANAGEMENT is therefore the process by which risks are identified, analysed, prioritised, managed 

and monitored / reviewed.   The Council has determined two clear points in the cycle where 

communication needs to be considered.

FIG 1: Risk Management Cycle

Identification

Analysis

Prioritise

CommunicateManagement 
Action

Monitor & Review

Communicate

The approved methodology will be outlined within the guidance to support Management, however the 

high level approach is outlined in paragraphs below.

36



7

The activity to IDENTIFY risk is most effective when aligned to strategic, operational and project planning 

processes focused on the achievement of outcomes.   In the context of the Southend 2050 programme 

risk will be identified against the themes and outcomes identified within the Council’s ambition.  

The Council’s methodology for risk ANALYSIS is for the likelihood of the risk materialising, and the 

impact, should it materialise, to be scored using a defined criteria and scored on a four by four grid.

Guidance that supports the implementation of this strategy provides criteria to promote consistency of 

evaluation of risk across the organisation.  

A template Risk Register is in place for the Corporate Risk Register which is supported by the  Pentana 

system.   Templates used for all risk registers will be refined and agreed by December 2019 as part of 

implementing this strategy.  The aim will be to ensure consistency across the organisation in how risk is 

captured and communicated but also ensure that the templates are fit for purpose to support a 

streamlined approach.  

A summary table is included here for information to assist in risk ANALYSIS.  More detailed guidance is 

included within the Risk Management Toolkit.

Likelihood Impact

Score 1-4 % chance Time 

Frequency

Score 1-4 Disruption to 

Services 

Residents 

affected or 

aware

Budget

1 Unlikely < 25% Once in <5 

years

1 Negligible Minor 

disruption to 

services

Up to 5%

>1%

2 Likely 25 -50% Once in < 

3 years

2 Material 1-2 weeks

Up to 10% 

>5%

3 Very 

Likely 

50-75% could 

materialise 

next 18-24 

months

3 Severe 

/Significant 

Opportunity

Up to one 

month

Up to 25%

5-10%

4 Almost 

Certain

>75% could 

materialise 

within 6-12 

months

4 Catastrophe /

Exceptional 

Opportunity

1 – 3 month

Up to 50%

10-20%

37



8

Consistency is also increased through the challenge mechanisms that exist within the governance 

structure which are documented in the delivering the strategy section. These challenge mechanisms are 

outlined in the appendices of this strategy (see Appendix 1).  

Plotting the risks visually can help with prioritisation and also challenge i.e. when risks are reviewed in 

relation to other risks also being reported within the organisation. The grid below is used to present the 

relative importance of risks.

Risk Matrix 

                                            

I 

M
                                  

P                                  
       
A                                    

C
               
T                                                

                                   

L I K E L I H O O D

Risk Ratings: 1 – 2 = low risk (Green) / 3 – 10 = medium risk (Amber) / 12 – 16 – high risk (Red)

In assessing a risk there are three ratings to be confirmed from the analysis of the risk.

The Inherent Risk Score – the level of risk before any mitigations have been applied.

The Residual Risk Score – taking into account the mitigations currently in place and the effectiveness of 

those implemented mitigations.

Catastrophic / 
exceptional 
opportunity

4 8 12 16

Severe / 
significant 
opportunity

3 6 9 12

Material 2 4 6 8

Negligible 1 2 3
      

4

Unlikely
<25%

Likely
25-50%

Very 
Likely

50-75%

Almost 
Certain 
>75%

Risk tolerance level – Risks above this level 

will need particular resources and focus 

 

Risk acceptance 

level (activity 

below which 

attracts 

minimum effort 

and resources)  

38



9

The Target Risk Score – the level at which the risk will fall within the Council’s appetite and be 

accepted.

Decisions regarding target risk will be driven by the approved Risk Appetite This is the amount of risk 

that the Council is willing to seek or accept in the pursuit of its objectives. 

Risk appetite will vary from person to person and is influenced by the type of risk. Guidance will be 

provided to Management and mechanisms within the process and procedures are designed to challenge 

and as a result increase consistency of decisions regarding risk across the Council.  This will be reported 

to Cabinet twice a year, and annually the effectiveness of these mechanisms will be considered and 

assurances provided to Audit Committee to assist with their Annual Report to Council.

The Risk Tolerance of the organisation is the boundaries of risk taking outside which the Council is not 

prepared to venture in the pursuit of its long-term objectives.   Effective communication regarding risk is 

essential to ensuring that the risk appetite being applied is ensuring risks are managed within the 

approved tolerance level.

The Risk Appetite and Tolerance of the organisation will be considered annually as part of the planned 

annual review of the framework, and changes to procedures and guidance made as required.

The PRIORITISATION of risks will be dependent of the outcome of the analysis stage and the gap between 

the residual and target risk ratings.

When taking decisions regarding the appropriate action to manage a risk consideration will be given to 

whether it is the likelihood or impact that we seek to reduce.

At this stage it may be necessary for COMMUNICATION with other individuals, teams, groups or boards.  

Others may need to understand the risk that is being managed, or their role in the control environment 

that needs to be in place. 

Risks can be MANAGED by:

 Treating – management action / control to bring within risk appetite or to ensure that the 

opportunities available are being optimised

 Transferring – passing to a third party, usually via a contract i.e. insurance – this would bring the 

activity within the council’s appetite and overall tolerance level

 Tolerating – accepting the current level of risk, because it is within the council’s defined appetite to 

do so and/or the cost of mitigations to reduce it further outweigh benefits to be gained in terms of 

affecting the likelihood or impact

 Terminating – ceasing the activity – usually because the risk exceeds the Council’s appetite or 

moves the overall level of risk over its tolerance for risk and/or the cost of mitigations to rectify this far 

exceeds the resources available.

39



10

Risks and their corresponding action plans need to be periodically REVIEWED AND MONITORED to ensure 

changes are recognised and captured.   The frequency of review should not be arbitrary, focus should be 

directed based on three factors:

1) The level of risk, more frequent attention to those of most significance to outcomes

2) Those risks where deadlines for actions are due, it is important to ensure actions are completed as 

planned and that they have had the expected effect on the risk rating

3) Risks where the Residual and Target risk ratings are furthest apart, as these are the risks where the 

council is most exposed and greatest action is required to move to within appetite.

There will be an expectation that risk registers are formally reviewed at least quarterly throughout the 

financial year.

Efficiency can be built into this process by ensuring robust assurances are in place regarding the 

materialisation of risk indicators or with regards to the design of the control environment.   These 

assurances exist within the Council in many forms, this includes but is not limited to performance data, 

feedback, reviews, inspections and internal audits.  Where gaps in assurances are noted then 

Management may not have reliable information with which to manage risk.

As risks are reviewed it may be necessary to COMMUNICATE the risk to others.  If management actions 

have failed to reduce risk then it may need to be escalated.   If the risk has changed then despite actions 

taken working the risk may still have increased and need to be escalated.  Risks that become deemed to 

be managed to within appetite may be removed from the corporate risk register and included on a more 

operational risk register level, for on-going monitoring.

AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

The Council’s Risk Management aims and objectives, for the period of this Strategy, are as follows:

 To ensure that actions taken to maximise opportunities and minimise the likelihood of risks 

crystallising, and / or reducing the impact of consequences should risks crystalise, are in accordance 

with the Council’s defined appetite and tolerance

 To further embed robust risk management into the culture of the Council in line with the approved 

policy, supporting procedures and good practice

 To ensure that the Risk Management process including effective reporting arrangements to senior 

Management and Members remain fit for purpose, optimising the efficiency of resources input. 

How these objectives will be achieved is outlined within the Delivering the Strategy section below.

40



11

DELIVERING THE STRATEGY

The diagram below outlines the governance structure with regards risk management.  

4 x 2050 Boards

Audit 

Committee

Corporate 

Management 

Team

Good 

Governance 

Group

Internal Audit

Other 

Assurances

Cabinet

Outcome Leads / 

Council Services

Council

41



12

Appendix 1 outlines the roles and responsibilities with regards Risk Management in the Council.  The 

effective delivery of the strategy will be reliant on fulfilment of the respective roles and responsibilities.   

An action plan is in place to ensure implementation of the approved policy and strategy.   This can be 

found at Appendix 2.  From 2019/20 there is an acknowledgement that the activity will be supported by 

the Head of Internal Audit with other risk resources, and that the procedures will need to continue to 

develop and evolve as the governance around the 2050 programme evolves, until this becomes 

embedded.

A timetable for reporting cycles has been included as Appendix 3 for the financial year 2019/20.  This 

will be updated and communicated to key stakeholders annually as part of the annual review of the risk 

management arrangements.  

A guidance document will be created to support officers in applying the requirements of the policy and 

strategy into their day to day roles and responsibilities.  This will be finalised and approved by December 

2019.

42



13

Appendix 1

Group / 
Individual

Role / Responsibility

Cabinet  To have regard to the risks faced by the council within the Cabinet decision 
making process

 Periodically review and challenge the Corporate Risk Register
 Endorse the Council’s Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy.

All Councillors  Support and promote risk management
 Consider the risks involved in any key decisions made. 

Councillor  

Theme / 

Outcome Leads

 Support the development and have a shared understanding of the risk registers 
that relate to their allocated theme / outcome.

Audit Committee  To assure themselves that the Risk Management Framework is operating 
effectively and in accordance with the approved Policy and Strategy

 To provide independent assurance to Cabinet and Council on the above
 Seek assurances that action is being taken on risk related issues identified by 

auditors and inspectors.
Chief Executive 

and Corporate 

Management 

Team

 To ensure that the corporate risk register reflects those organisational risks that 
may prevent it delivering on the 2050 ambition 

 Support and promote risk management throughout the council
 To oversee the development / review of the council’s Risk Management 

Strategy / Framework
 To ensure engagement in risk and control mechanisms across their respective 

service areas.
Head of Internal 

Audit

(Officer 

Champion for 

Risk)

 Facilitating the link across risk management activity at the corporate level
 Managing resources to support risk management in the organisation at the 

operational level
 Attending CMT quarterly strategic forward looking meetings
 Identifying the resources to deliver the action plan (appendix 2) and confirming 

to CMT and Audit Committee they are in place.

S2050 Theme

Leads 
 Champion and ensure that risk management is implemented across the five 

themes and 23 outcomes
 Identify relevant lead officers / risk owners as appropriate
 To ensure that Members are briefed on significant risks that fall within their 

theme / outcome and actions to address these
 Consider cross cutting, joint working and risks within partnership working
 Escalate risks as appropriate to CMT / Corporate Risk Register.

Good 

Governance 

Group

 Challenge the Corporate Risk Register quarterly
 Focus their agenda on gaps in controls and / or assurances

S2050 Outcome 

Leads
 To embed risk management into their outcome and escalate risks as required.

Risk Champions  To support the continued development of risk management by embedding risk 
management in the running of their respective board/service and acting as a 
point of contact to provide support and information as appropriate.  

43



14

Group / 
Individual

Role / Responsibility

Internal Audit  To offer independent, objective assurance and advice on risk management 
activity

 To undertake an audit of risk management arrangements and make 
recommendations on actions to be considered

 To provide assurance on the effectiveness of controls, including annual 
assessment of the council’s risk management and internal control mechanisms 
as part of the Annual Governance Statement.

Risk 

Management 

Function

 To ensure that the Risk Management Framework, including the Policy 
Statement, Strategy and guidance, are kept up to date, reflect best practice and 
are relevant to the organisation

 To provide support on risk management across the council
 To co-ordinate the reporting of the corporate risk register to senior officers and 

Councillors and provide advice and challenge as appropriate, including the 
tracking of action plans in the risk register

 To support the identification of and analyse key new and emerging risks and 
report to CMT for consideration (horizon scanning)

 Support communication of the risk management strategy and process, and 
update as appropriate, across the council through risk reviews and training 
sessions

 Advise on possible actions that may be required in respect of business change 
initiatives

 Ensuring there is a robust framework of assurances shared within the council.  
For example ensuring there is periodic consideration of insurance management 
information reports and other risk focused performance data, and take forward 
any identified initiatives arising from identifying incidents that can add value to 
the business and avoid loss control

 Promoting risk management awareness.
All Employees  To understand the risks that relate to their role and activities and their role in 

reporting on and managing these
 To report new or emerging risks in a timely manner.

44



15

Appendix 2

Ref Implementation Action Plan Estimated Timing by

1 General communications to the organisation following

approval of the Policy Statement and Strategy

September 2019

2 Attendance at four 2050 Governance Boards to capture 

programme / corporate risks

Identification of Risk Champions

October 2019

3 Attendance at Good Governance Group to workshop corporate 

risks and procedures

October 2019

4 Attendance at CMT to propose risk management procedures 

and seek approval for operational guidance documents

November 2019

5 Attendance at Directorate Management Team Meetings to 

promote risk management and new approach

December 2019

6 Refresh of Corporate Risk Register December 2019

7 Attendance at service team meetings to promote new approach March 2020

8 Meetings with outcome leads / groups to workshop risks March 2020

9 Refresh of Corporate Risk Register March 2020

10 Update and refresh of this action plan for 2020/21 as part of the 

Annual Review of Risk Management

May 2020

11 Independent review of Risk Management for inclusion in Annual 

Report and Head of Internal Audit Opinion.  

To manage conflict of interest for Head of Audit.

May 2020

45



16

Appendix 3

Dates Reporting Action Required

October 2019 2050 Governance Boards to capture programme / corporate risks

October 2019 Good Governance Group to workshop corporate risks and procedures

December 2019 CMT to propose risk management procedures

December 2019 CMT update and Corporate Risk Register

January 2020 Cabinet update and Corporate Risk Register 

February 2020 CMT update and Corporate Risk Register

May 2020 Good Governance Group update and Corporate Risk Register

May 2020 CMT update and Corporate Risk Register

July 2020 Cabinet update and Corporate Risk Register 

46



 

Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption                              
Policy and Strategy

47



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy 

VERSION CONTROL SHEET

Title: Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy

Purpose: To advise council workers and suppliers on what fraud, bribery and 
corruption is, how to identify it and report it. 

Owner: Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate

Approved by: Corporate Management Team – 07/08/2019
Cabinet – 17/09/2019

Date: Approved – 17/09/2019
Implemented – 18/09/2019

Version 
Number:

2.2

Status: Draft

Review 
Frequency:

Bi-annually

Next Review 
Date:

September 2021

 

Change History
Date Change Details Approved by
Nov 2018 Revision of formatting and reporting 

methods, legislative changes.
Joe Chesterton, Strategic 
Director (Finance & 
Resources)

August 
2019

Revision of formatting and reporting 
methods, legislative changes.

Joe Chesterton, Strategic 
Director (Finance & 
Resources)
John Williams, Strategic 
Director (Legal & 
Democratic Services) 

48



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy 

Policy Statement

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council is serious about protecting the public money 
we are charged with to protect. We take a strong stance against those who 
seek to commit fraud against the council.

It is an unfortunate reality that Southend-on-Sea Borough Council, like any large 
organisation, is not immune from fraud, bribery and corruption from both those 
outside the organisation and the few who may work here and commit crime.

Cases of internal fraud are extremely rare and we have a strong framework of 
policies and controls in place to detect any risks, supported by our Internal Audit 
Service and Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate.

This policy sets out what the council will do to make it the most difficult 
environment for fraud to occur and the responsibility on everyone in the council 
to find fraud and report it.

Fraud in councils can happen anywhere. No team or department is immune.   
As a council we spend around £520m annually.  International standards say 
that about 3% of that spending will be lost due to fraud and corruption. That 
equates to £15m, every year.

It is important that we look after our resident’s money and make sure no one 
misuses it.  It is incumbent on all of us in the council to report any suspicions we 
may have and support the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud services in their 
work.

Alison Griffin
Chief Executive & Town Clerk

49



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy 

Contents

1. Introduction.......................................................................................................................3
2. What is Fraud?..................................................................................................................3
3. How is fraud committed against the Council? ..............................................................4
4. What is bribery and corruption? .....................................................................................5
5. What do I do if I suspect fraud, bribery or corruption? ................................................6
6. What does the Council do with cases of suspected fraud?.........................................6
7. Whistleblowing .................................................................................................................7
8. Information Sharing .........................................................................................................7
9. Monitoring Delivery ..........................................................................................................8
Appendix 1: Roles & Responsibilities...................................................................................9
Appendix 2: Key Contacts....................................................................................................11
Appendix 3: Fraud Legislation.............................................................................................12
Appendix 4: Bribery & Corruption Legislation...................................................................14

50



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy 

1. Introduction

1.1 As a local authority Southend-on-Sea Borough Council (the Council) is responsible for 
delivering key frontline services such as maintaining roads, keeping our borough clean 
and green, educating our children and young adults as well as supporting the 
vulnerable in health and social care support.

1.2 We deliver these services with the £520m of public money we have in our budget.  
Criminals do and will continue to seek to take that money from the Council.  Criminals 
can come in all forms from services users, to suppliers and the colleagues sitting next 
to us.

1.3 The way to beat those who seek to take the public’s money is to make sure our 
systems and controls in place are strong, and then consistently implement them.  This 
means all of the procedures we have as teams are robust and auditable, so we can 
prevent fraud and identify possible concerns.

1.4 This policy sets out what fraud, bribery and corruption is, how you can spot it and what 
to do if you suspect it. 

1.5 Every council worker and our partners are responsible for following this policy and 
reporting their suspicions to our Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud & 
Investigation Directorate.

1.6 As council workers we are public officials who must all follow the seven Principles of 
Public Life, also known as the Nolan Principles. These are:
1. Selflessness
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.
2. Integrity
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or 
organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not act 
or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their 
family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve any interests and relationships.
3. Objectivity
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the 
best evidence and without discrimination or bias.
4. Accountability
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and must 
submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.
5. Openness
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. 
Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful reasons 
for so doing.
6. Honesty
Holders of public office should be truthful.
7. Leadership
Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should 
actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor behaviour 
wherever it occurs.

51



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy 

2. What is Fraud?

2.1 In this policy ‘fraud’ is used as shorthand for any criminal offence where money or 
assets belonging to the Council can be lost.  It includes theft, fraud, burglary and other 
deception offences such as corrupt practices by those who work for us or suppliers.

2.2 Fraud is where a person is dishonest in their actions in order to cause a loss to the 
Council or expose the Council to a potential loss.  It also includes where a person 
causes a chain of events by doing or not doing something, that causes or exposes the 
Council to a loss. 

2.3 Any of the actions described above are criminal offences and can result in 
imprisonment.

3. How is fraud committed against Council?

Applying for Services / Making a Declaration

3.1 The Council provides hundreds of different services to the public we serve. 
Unfortunately there is a small minority of those who seek to take advantage of those 
services.  This could be by a person embellishing their circumstances, making 
something up completely or purposefully not declaring something.

3.2 In the Council’s welfare support services such as Social Care, Housing and Essential 
Living Fund, this could be a person not being honest about their needs, what their 
financial status is or what they will be using the services for.  It may be a person acting 
on the service user’s behalf that is being dishonest in order to benefit them.

3.3 In each of these examples the frauds are denying the legitimate use of Council funds 
for those who are in need.  

Suppliers / Providers

3.4 The highest risk to the public sector is from its supply 
chain.  A Council is a business making regular and 
sometimes large financial transactions with our 
suppliers and providers in order to deliver our 
services.  

3.5 Some unscrupulous suppliers, or staff working in 
supplier companies, may seek to take advantage of 
our payment systems and processes.

3.6 Fraud in this area can be committed where suppliers 
submit false or ‘erroneous’ invoices or other requests 
for payment.  Suppliers may also be dishonest in 
how they are delivering the services or goods we 
have asked them for.  They may be poor quality or 
not supplied at all.

3.7 Staff that deal with our suppliers and providers must ensure that the Council is getting 
what it has paid for.  The Council’s Corporate Procurement Team is experienced in 
letting and managing contracts and applying the right controls when sourcing goods, 
works and services.

Did you know?

In 2014, the 
Council 
prosecuted a 
Foster Carer who 
stole £5,500 from 
a child in their 
care.

52



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy 

Council Worker Fraud

3.8 Like any large employer employing thousands of people, there will always be a small 
minority of people who seek to commit fraud or allow fraud to take place.

3.9 Fraud in this area can be staff who take unauthorised absences, such as:

 Claiming ‘flexi time’ when they haven’t accrued any 

 Claiming to be working from home when they are not 

 Claiming to be working in the field but going home early / starting later.
3.10 Payroll or expenses fraud can also be committed by Council workers.  For example, 

staff falsely claiming overtime for hours they have not worked or mileage or 
subsistence for expenses they have not incurred.

3.11 It is therefore important for all staff to follow the Council’s procedures, particularly 
those staff in management positions authorising such claims or transactions, as well 
as colleagues who may notice irregularities.

4. What is bribery and corruption?

4.1 As public servants, all workers in the Council are in a privileged position to serve the 
public of Southend-on-Sea.  That responsibility comes with a significant amount of 
trust and confidence in how we conduct ourselves.

4.2 It has always been a criminal offence for anyone working at the council to receive gifts 
or hospitality where the person giving the gift or hospitality is seeking to induce us to, 
or reward us for doing something for their, or somebody else’s benefit.

4.3 This type of corruption has been depicted in many different films and fictional stories 
since time began. Examples have seen cases of criminals:

 seeking to build a house that would normally be rejected by planners 

 wanting the Council to ‘look the other way’ for parking fines or other enforcement 
responsibilities.

4.4 This type of criminality is the most serious type of dishonesty.
4.5 Those who act corruptly or offer themselves to receive gifts or hospitality to feed this 

criminality bring the Council and their colleagues in to disrepute.

Did you know?

The impact if all staff falsely worked half an hour less per week 
would effectively be a cost to the Council of £130k every year.

53



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy 

5. What do I do if I suspect fraud, bribery or corruption?

5.1 The Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate (CFID) is responsible for dealing with 
any cases of suspected criminality described in this policy, not the police.   

5.2 It is the responsibility of everyone working here to look for and report any possible 
fraud taking place.  You do not have to speak to a manager before reporting your 
suspicions.

5.3 If you see any of the suspicious activity linked to fraud you should:

  Not tell the person that you have any suspicions about them

  Take copies of any records that could help to a secure location 

  Telephone a member of the CFID team right away on 03000 999111 (24/7)

  Follow the instructions given by the CFID team.

6. What does the Council do with cases of suspected fraud?

6.1 The Council has a dedicated team of professionally trained and accredited 
investigation officers who fully investigate instances of suspected fraud.  The CFID 
team work around the clock, anywhere in the UK, utilising powers to arrest persons, 
search their premises and seize their assets to take back what the Council has lost.

6.2 In cases where there may be a proven case of fraud the Council’s Legal Services has 
dedicated Criminal Prosecutors who apply the Code for Crown Prosecutors.  This 
code is used by a lawyer to decide, independently, whether:

 there is sufficient evidence of a crime 

 it is in the public interest to prosecute those responsible.
6.3 CFID also has a dedicated Criminal Finances Unit 

that is accredited by the National Crime Agency to 
present cases to a Judge where necessary to 
obtain consent to pursue actions requiring that 
approval, and confiscate any criminal proceeds.

6.4 The Council will always publicise cases of proven 
fraud in the media to act as a deterrent and 
encourage people to come forward to report fraud.

6.5 CFID share all the allegations they have received 
and the work that they have done to investigate 
those allegations with the Executive Director 
(Finance & Resources) and the Head of Internal 
Audit on a monthly basis.

Did you know? 

Since 2014, the 
Council has 
recovered £552k 
from fraudsters.

54



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy 

7. Whistleblowing

7.1 The Council is committed to providing the highest quality service to our residents, 
businesses and visitors to Southend-on-Sea.  Maintaining the full trust and confidence 
in the way the Council manages our services and resources is essential.  Our priority 
is making sure those in need and vulnerable are provided for safely, effectively and in 
accordance with best practice.

7.2 The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy is intended to encourage and enable workers to 
raise serious concerns.  Council workers reporting concerns this way are afforded 
certain rights and protection through legislation enacted under the Public Interest 
Disclosure Act 1998.

7.3 Workers who report concerns will be supported and protected from reprisals. 
Everything possible will be done to protect their confidentiality.  They will be advised of 
the action that has been taken by the person to whom they reported their concerns.

7.4 Management are responsible for reporting all allegations received from whistleblowing 
under the confidential reporting code to the Monitoring Officer.  The Monitoring Officer 
will refer the allegations relating to suspected fraud, money laundering, bribery and 
corruption to the Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate for investigation. All such 
cases should be recorded in a register maintained by the Monitoring Officer.

7.5 CFID will deal with the matter promptly, efficiently and in accordance with the law, 
involving such outside agencies as appropriate (including the police).  Where a service 
provider employee is involved, the supplier will be informed where appropriate in 
liaison with the Executive Director (Finance & Resources) and CFID.

8. Information Sharing

8.1 As a responsible data controller, the Council always ensures that personal data we 
hold is safeguarded in accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018 and the General 
Data Protection Regulation.

8.2 The Council will use data to ensure that we are protected from any cases of suspected 
fraud, bribery or corruption as well as money laundering and identify those involved. 

8.3 Any workers contacted by the CFID, Internal Audit or Legal Services as part of a 
criminal investigation must provide any Council data held in any form (paper or 
electronically).  Council workers must not tell anyone that they have been asked for 
any material for an investigation, unless permitted to by the CFID, Internal Audit or 
Legal Services.

8.4 Any concerns workers may have about releasing information should be directed to the 
Assistant Director for Fraud & Investigation, Head of Internal Audit, Strategic Director 
(Finance & Resources) or Strategic Director (Legal & Democratic Services).

9. Monitoring Delivery

9.1 The CFID leads the Council’s fight against fraud and economic crime, including bribery 
and corruption.  The team reports quarterly to the Council’s Corporate Management 
Team and Audit Committee on its work to tackle the problem and its performance in 
delivering this Strategy.

55



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy
Appendix 1: Roles & Responsibilities

Expected Behaviour

The Council requires all staff and Councillors to act honestly and with integrity at all times 
and to safeguard the resources for which they are responsible.  Fraud is an ever-present 
threat to these resources and hence must be a concern to all staff and Councillors.  The 
purpose of this statement is to set out specific responsibilities with regard to the prevention of 
fraud.

Section 151 Officer (Executive Director (Finance & Resources)) is responsible for:

 Proper administration of the authority’s financial affairs

 Reporting to Councillors and External Audit if the Council, or one of its representatives 
makes, or is about to make, a decision which is unlawful, or involves illegal 
expenditure or potential financial loss (Local Government Finance Act 1988 s.114)

Monitoring Officer is responsible for:

 Reporting on contraventions or likely contraventions of any enactment or rule of law

 Report on any maladministration or injustice where the Ombudsman has carried out 
an investigation

 Receiving copies of whistleblowing allegations of misconduct

 Promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct through and with the support of 
the Standards Committee

 Advice on vires (legality) issues, maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and 
policy framework and budget issues to all Councillors

Managers are responsible for:

 Maintaining internal control systems and ensuring that the authority’s resources and 
activities are properly applied in the manner intended

 Identifying the risks to which systems and procedures are exposed

 Developing and maintaining effective controls to prevent and detect fraud

 Ensuring that controls are being complied with, including making sure their staff are 
performing well and meeting council policies and procedures.

Individual members of staff are responsible for:

 Their own conduct and for contributing towards the safeguarding of corporate 
standards (including declarations of interest, gifts & hospitality, private working, 
whistleblowing etc.)

 Acting with propriety in the use of official resources and in the handling and use of 
corporate funds, such as when dealing with contractors and suppliers

 Reporting details immediately to the Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate if they 
suspect that a fraud, theft, bribery, corruption or money laundering has been 
committed, or see any suspicious acts or events

56



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy
Appendix 1: Roles & Responsibilities

Internal Audit is responsible for:

 The independent appraisal of control systems

 Reporting to the Corporate Management Team and the Audit Committee on the 
council’s governance framework

 The implementation of an annual audit plan to include identification of fraud risks to 
the Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate

Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate is responsible for:

 The investigation into allegations of any money laundering, fraud, bribery, theft, 
corruption and related offences committed against the authority

 Reporting of persons for consideration of prosecution (or the application of an 
alternative sanction) 

 All action under the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 and Criminal Justice Act 1988 in 
respect of financial investigation, restraint, detention, forfeiture and confiscation

 The co-ordination of participation in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

 Providing Counter-Fraud, Money Laundering, Theft, Bribery & Corruption Awareness 

 Taking redress from offenders under criminal and civil law

 Referring any matters to & receiving information and intelligence from all law 
enforcement agencies (Police, HMRC, Home Office etc) where appropriate.

External Audit has specific responsibilities for:

 Reviewing the stewardship of public money

 Considering whether the Council has adequate arrangements in place to prevent fraud 
and corruption

 Signing off the annual accounts of the authority

Councillors are each responsible for:

 Their own conduct

 Contributing towards the safeguarding of corporate standards, as detailed in the 
Members’ Code of Conduct

57



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy
Appendix 2: Key Contacts

Contact Details 

Counter Fraud & Investigation 
Directorate

9th Floor, Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend-on-
Sea, SS2 6EN
Tel: 03000 999 111
E-mail: counterfraud@southend.gov.uk
Web: southend.gov.uk/fraud

David Kleinberg 
Assistant Director for Fraud & 
Investigation

Tel: 03000 999 111
E-mail: davidkleinberg@southend.gov.uk

Joe Chesterton
Strategic Director (Finance & 
Resources)
(s.151 Chief Finance Officer)

10th Floor, Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend-
on-Sea, SS2 6EN
Tel: 01702 215200
E-mail: joechesterton@southend.gov.uk

John Williams
Strategic Director (Legal and 
Democratic Services)
(Monitoring Officer)

2nd Floor, Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend-
on-Sea, SS2 6EN
Tel: 01702 215102
E-mail: johnwilliams@southend.gov.uk

Andrew Barnes
Head of Internal Audit

9th Floor, Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend-on-
Sea, SS2 6EN
Tel: 07827 348375
E-mail: andrewbarnes@southend.gov.uk

Protect
(Independent charity for 
whistleblowing, providing free 
independent legal advice)

CAN Mezzanine, 7-14 Great Dover Street, London 
SE1 4YR 
Tel: 020 3117 2520
E-mail: whistle@protect-advice.org.uk
Web: pcaw.org.uk

58



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy
Appendix 3: Fraud Legislation

1 Fraud

1.1 The Fraud Act 2006 introduced the first statutory definition of fraud whereby:  
“A person is guilty of fraud if he is in breach of any of the sections listed in subsection 
(2) (which provide for different ways of committing the offence). 
Fraud can be committed by:
a) section 2 (Fraud by False Representation), 
b) section 3 (Fraud by Failing to Disclose Information), and 
c) section 4 (Fraud by Abuse of Position). “
Fraud by false representation

A fraud will be committed if a person dishonestly makes a false representation and 
when doing so intends to make a gain or cause loss (or a risk of loss) to another.

Fraud by failing to disclose information
A fraud will be committed if a person dishonestly fails to disclose information where 
there is a legal obligation to do so and when doing so intends to make a gain or 
cause loss (or a risk of loss) to another.

Fraud by abuse of position
A person will commit fraud if he occupies a position in which he is expected to 
safeguard, or not act against, the financial interests of another person and he 
dishonestly abuses that position; and in doing so intends to make a gain or cause 
loss (or a risk of loss) to another.

2 Theft, Burglary and Robbery

2.1 A person is guilty of theft if they dishonestly appropriate property, belonging to 
another, with the intention of permanently depriving the other of it.

2.2 Theft includes where someone takes something “and uses it as their own”. 
2.3 A person is guilty of robbery if they steal, and immediately before or at the time of 

doing so, and in order to do so, they use force on any person or put or seek to put any 
person in fear of being then and there subjected to force.

2.4 A person is guilty of burglary if they enter any building or part of a building as a 
trespasser and with intent to steal anything in the building or part of a building in 
question, of inflicting on any person therein any grievous bodily harm; or having 
entered any building or part of a building as a trespasser they steal or attempt to steal 
anything in the building or that part of it or inflicts or attempts to inflict on any person 
therein any grievous bodily harm.

59

https://www.pnld.co.uk/docportal/content/D45.htm
https://www.pnld.co.uk/docportal/content/D20.htm
https://www.pnld.co.uk/docportal/content/D366.htm


Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy
Appendix 4: Bribery and Corruption Legislation

1 Bribery

1.1 A bribe is “a financial or other advantage that is offered or requested with the intention 
of inducing or rewarding the improper performance of a relevant function or activity, or 
with the knowledge or belief that the acceptance of such an advantage would 
constitute the improper performance of such a function or activity.”

1.2 The types of offending relating to bribery are:
1.2.1 Bribery:  Giving or receiving something of value to influence a transaction 

dishonestly makes a false representation.
1.2.2 Illegal gratuity:  Giving or receiving something of value after a transaction is 

completed, in acknowledgment of some influence over the transaction.
1.2.3 Extortion:  Demanding a sum of money (or goods) with a threat of harm 

(physical or business) if demands are not met.
1.2.4 Conflict of interest:  Where a worker has an economic or personal interest in a 

transaction.
1.2.5 Kickback:  A portion of the value of the contract demanded / provided as a 

bribe by an official for securing the contract.
1.3 The Bribery Act 2010, which came into force on 1st July 2011, introduced four primary 

offences in a single piece of legislation with all previous statutes being repealed.
1.3.1 Section 1:  Offences of bribing another person, where: 

(a) a person offers, promises or gives a financial or other advantage to    
another person, and

(b) intends the advantage to:
(i) induce a person to perform improperly a relevant function or activity, or
(ii) reward a person for the improper performance of such a function  or 

activity.
1.3.2 Section 2:  Offence relating to being bribed.
1.3.3 Section 6:  Bribery of foreign public officials.
1.3.4    Section 7:  Failure by a commercial organisation to prevent bribery.

1.4 Under the Bribery Act, an organisation has a defence if it can show that it has 
adequate bribery prevention procedures in place.  The Ministry of Justice guidance1 on 
the Bribery Act 2010, explains what needs to be in place to rely on this defence:
1.4.1 Proportionality:  An organisation’s procedures to prevent bribery by persons 

associated with it are proportionate to the bribery risks it faces and to the nature, 
scale and complexity of the organisation’s activities.  They are also clear, 
practical, accessible, effectively implemented and enforced.

1.4.2 Top Level Commitment:  Those at the top of an organisation are in the best 
position to ensure their organisation conducts business without bribery.  We 
want to show that we have been active in making sure that our staff (including 

1 http://www.justice.gov.uk/downloads/legislation/bribery-act-2010-quick-start-guide.pdf

60



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy
Appendix 4: Bribery and Corruption Legislation

any middle management) and the key people who do business with us and for 
us understand that we do not tolerate bribery. 

1.4.3 Risk Assessment:   The organisation assesses the nature and extent of its 
exposure to potential external and internal risks of bribery on its behalf by 
persons associated with it.  The assessment is periodic, informed and 
documented.  It includes financial risks but also other risks such as reputational 
damage.     

1.4.4 Due Diligence:  Knowing exactly who we are dealing with can help to protect 
our organisation from taking on people who might be less than trustworthy.

1.4.5 Communication:  Communicating our policies and procedures to staff and to 
others who will perform services for us enhances awareness and helps to deter 
bribery by making clear the basis on which our organisation does business. 

1.4.6 Monitoring and Review:  we monitor and review procedures designed to prevent 
bribery by persons associated with it and makes improvements where 
necessary.

1.5 Prior to 2011, under Common Law, a person commits an offence where a person 
“Offering, giving or receiving, any undue reward, by or to any person whatsoever in a 
public office, in order to influence his behaviour in office and incline him to act contrary 
to the known rules of honesty and integrity.”

Corruption

1.6 Corruption can be committed in many ways but normally involves “two or more people 
entering into a secret agreement.”

1.7 Indicators showing this type of offending can include the following:
1.7.1 Abnormal cash payments.
1.7.2 Pressure exerted for payments to be made urgently or ahead of schedule.
1.7.3 Private meetings with public contractors or companies hoping to tender for 

contracts.
1.7.4 Lavish gifts being offered or received.
1.7.5 An individual who never takes time off even if ill, or holidays, or insists on 

dealing with specific contractors himself or herself.
1.7.6 Making unexpected or illogical decisions accepting projects or contracts.
1.7.7 Abuse of the decision process or delegated powers in specific cases.
1.7.8 Agreeing contracts not favourable to the organisation either because of 

the terms or the time period.
1.7.9 Unexplained preference for certain contractors during tendering period.
1.7.10 Avoidance of independent checks on the tendering or contracting processes.
1.7.11 The Council’s or its suppliers / partner’s procedures or guidelines not being 

followed.

61



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy
Appendix 4: Bribery and Corruption Legislation

1.8 The Local Government Act 1972 requires under section 117(2) that employees must 
disclose any personal interest in contracts that have been, or are proposed to be, 
entered into by the Council.  Failure to do so is a criminal offence.

62



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy
Appendix 4: Bribery and Corruption Legislation

63



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Counter-Money Laundering Policy and Strategy

65



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter-Money Laundering Policy & Strategy 

VERSION CONTROL SHEET

Title: Counter-Money Laundering Policy & Strategy

Purpose: To advise council workers and suppliers on what money 
laundering is, how to identify it and report it. 

Owner: Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate

Approved by: Corporate Management Team – 07/08/2019
Cabinet – 17/09/2019

Date: Approved – 17/09/2019
Implemented – 18/09/2019

Version 
Number:

2.2

Status: Draft

Review 
Frequency:

Bi-annually

Next Review 
Date:

September 2021

 

Change History
Date Change Details Approved by
May 2017 Inclusion of 4th Money Laundering 

Directive
Joe Chesterton (Head of 
Finance & Resources)

August 2019 Revision of formatting and reporting 
methods, legislative changes.

Joe Chesterton, Executive 
Director (Finance & Resources)
John Williams, Executive 
Director (Legal & Democratic 
Services) 

66



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter-Money Laundering Policy & Strategy 

Version 2.1 Jan 2019

Counter-Money Laundering Policy Statement

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council is serious about protecting public money 
and ensuring that criminals do not use the council in their enterprises.

Money laundering is a serious crime and recognised as a ‘critical enabler’ for 
organised criminal gangs and terrorists to benefit and use for other criminality.  
Denying criminals the use of their ill-gotten gains disrupts criminality and can 
help law enforcement identify offenders.

The UK has developed strong legislation to tackle the problem with the right 
focus being on the financial services industries that are largely targeted to 
launder the proceeds of crime.  The ‘regulated sector’, as it is known, has 
experienced and robust processes to make it difficult for criminals to launder 
their criminal proceeds.

As this work by the banks, financial institutions, legal and property related firms 
becomes more successful the way criminals launder their illegal money 
becomes more difficult for them.

The effect of this success is that more and more public bodies are being 
targeted by criminals to launder their criminal proceeds.

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council takes a strong stance against any criminality. 
Our dedicated Criminal Finances Unit in the Counter Fraud & Investigation 
Directorate is experienced in using their powers to identify, seize and confiscate 
criminal proceeds. We need to ensure that the entre council is live to this reality 
and works hard to prevent and detect it.

We will continue to work closely with our partners in the National Crime Agency 
to share information and intelligence and pursue criminals who seek to use the 
council as a money laundering vehicle.

Ali Griffin
Chief Executive

67



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter-Money Laundering Policy & Strategy 

Version 2.1 Jan 2019

Contents

1. Introduction.......................................................................................................................3
2. What is Money Laundering?............................................................................................3
3. What are the Money Laundering criminal offences? ....................................................4
4. How to identify suspected Money Laundering ..............................................................5
5. How to report suspected Money Laundering ................................................................5
6. What does the council do about Money Laundering? ..................................................6
7. Monitoring Delivery ..........................................................................................................6
8. Relevant Legislation.........................................................................................................7
9. Appendix 1 – Key Contacts .............................................................................................8

68



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter-Money Laundering Policy & Strategy 

Version 2.1 Jan 2019

1. Introduction

1.1 An overriding responsibility of all public sector organisations is the provision of 

effective and efficient services to our residents in a manner that seeks to ensure the 

best possible protection of the public funds we use.

1.2 This policy sets out the action we will take to mitigate the risk that money could be 

laundered through our systems.

1.3 The legislative requirements concerning anti-money laundering procedures are lengthy 

and complex.  Whilst the risk to the Council of contravening the legislation is relatively 

low, it is extremely important that all Council and schools workers are familiar with their 

legal responsibilities.  Serious criminal sanctions may be imposed for breaches of the 

legislation, including imprisonment.

1.4 As a responsible public body we expect all of our suppliers and contractors to follow 

our strong stance and not tolerate any criminality attempting to affect our services or 

staff.

2. What is Money Laundering?

2.1 Money laundering is the process through which ‘criminal property’ (i.e. a person’s 

benefit from criminal conduct) is given the appearance of having originated from a 

legitimate source.

2.2 Criminal conduct is anything that is a criminal offence in the United Kingdom. It could 

be fraud, theft, drug dealing, prostitution, terrorism and includes offences such as 

breaching building planning law and trade mark offences

2.3 Criminal property is defined as anything which is a person’s benefit from their criminal 

conduct. That could be money, real and personal property (houses, buildings, boats, 

cars, horses, watches etc), ‘things in action’ and other intangible or incorporeal 

property (i.e. debts, intellectual property such as copyright, designs and patents etc)

69



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter-Money Laundering Policy & Strategy 

Version 2.1 Jan 2019

3. What are the Money Laundering criminal offences?

Proceeds of Crime Offences

3.1 The criminal offences of money laundering are contained in the Proceeds of Crime Act 

2002. They are committed when ‘criminal property’ is transferred, concealed, 

disguised, converted or removed by a person from England, Wales, Scotland & 

Northern Ireland. 

3.2 A person also commits the offence of ‘money laundering’ if they enter into or become 

concerned in an arrangement which they know or suspect facilitates the acquisition, 

retention, use or control of criminal property by or on behalf of another person 

3.3 A person commits a criminal offence when they do something that might prejudice ‘a 

money laundering investigation’, for example, falsifying or concealing a document or 

‘tipping off’ (“telling”) a person who is suspected of being involved in money laundering.

Terrorist Financing Offences

3.4 The Terrorism Act 2000 also creates money laundering offences where a person 

enters in to or becomes concerned in an arrangement which facilitates the retention or 

control by or on behalf of another person of terrorist property (“money”);

 by concealment

 by removal from the United Kingdom

 by transfer to nominees, or

 in any other way

3.5 It should be understood that ‘terrorist property’ covers not only the money stolen in, 

say, a terrorist robbery, but also any money paid in connection with the commission of 

terrorist acts. Any resources of a proscribed organisation are also covered: not only 

the resources they use for bomb-making, arms purchase etc but also money they have 

set aside for non-violent purposes such as paying their rent.

3.6 A proscribed organisation is defined under Schedule 2 of the Terrorism Act 2000. The 

Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate is responsible for monitoring these 

organisations and responding appropriately.

70



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter-Money Laundering Policy & Strategy 

Version 2.1 Jan 2019

3.7 A person also commits a criminal offence if they fail to disclose to a constable that they 

believe a person has committed a terrorism money laundering offence. 

Criminal Law Defences

3.8 A person does not commit a criminal offence where they can demonstrate that “his 
employer has established a procedure for the making of disclosures of the 
matters specified” and they follow that procedure. 

4. How to identify suspected Money Laundering

4.1 All council workers should be alert to the possibility of someone trying to launder 

criminal proceeds through the Council. Some indications of suspicious activity are:

Large cash payments (e.g. paying business rates in cash)

Overpayments by a person/ company in any way

Duplicate payments by a person/ company in any way

Regular requests for refunds of payments

Regular ‘chargebacks’ for card payments

Someone paying on behalf of a third party

Cash buyers purchasing land or property (e.g. Right to Buy properties)

4.2 Any council workers with concerns about money laundering should contact a member 

of the Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate (CFID) on 03000 999111 for advice.

4.3 CFID regularly provides training to council services on identifying and reporting 

suspected money laundering.

71



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter-Money Laundering Policy & Strategy 

Version 2.1 Jan 2019

5. How to report suspected Money Laundering

5.1 The Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate (CFID) is responsible for managing any 

cases of suspected money laundering.  

5.2 It is the responsibility of every council worker to look for and report any possible 

money laundering taking place. You do not have to speak to a manager before 

reporting your suspicions.

5.3 If you see any of the suspicious activity linked to money laundering you should:

Not tell the person that you have any suspicions about them

Take all the records (and any cash) from the person to a secure location 

Telephone a member of the CFID team right away on 03000 999111 (24/7)

Follow the instructions given by the CFID team.

5.4 Remember: Failure to report your suspicions to CFID could expose you to criminal 

prosecution.

6. What does the council do about Money Laundering?

6.1 The Criminal Finances Unit in the Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate is 

accredited by the National Crime Agency to conduct money laundering investigations.  

The Accredited Financial Investigators in the team can obtain court Production Orders 

to access a person’s bank accounts, seize any cash and restrain a person’s assets, 

worldwide, who they suspect of money laundering.

6.2 In cases where money laundering is proven the council will prosecute those offenders 

and use the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 to take their ill-gotten gains. Any money 

confiscated is paid back in to the council to fight crime.

72



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter-Money Laundering Policy & Strategy 

Version 2.1 Jan 2019

7. Monitoring Delivery

7.1 The Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate leads the council’s fight against fraud 

and economic crime, including money laundering.  The team reports quarterly to the 

Council’s Audit Committee on its work to tackle the problem.

7.2 The service also reports regularly on its performance to the Council’s Corporate 

Management Team.

8. Relevant Legislation

8.1 The Terrorism Act 2000 as amended by the Anti-Terrorist Crime and Security Act 2001

8.2 The Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (POCA)

8.3 Serious Organised Crime and Police Act 2005

8.4 The Money Laundering Regulations 2007

8.5 Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing and Transfer of Funds (Information on the 

Payer) Regulations 2017 (known as the EU 4th Money Laundering Directive)

73

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/692/pdfs/uksi_20170692_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/692/pdfs/uksi_20170692_en.pdf


Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter-Money Laundering Policy & Strategy 

Version 2.1 Jan 2019

9. Appendix 1 – Key Contacts

Contact Details 

Counter Fraud & Investigation 
Directorate

9th Floor, Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend-on-
Sea, SS2 6EN
Tel: 03000 999 111
E-mail: counterfraud@southend.gov.uk
Web: southend.gov.uk/fraud

David Kleinberg 
Assistant Director for Fraud & 
Investigation

Tel: 03000 999 111
E-mail: davidkleinberg@southend.gov.uk

Joe Chesterton
Strategic Director (Finance & 
Resources)
(s.151 Chief Finance Officer)

10th Floor, Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend-
on-Sea, SS2 6EN
Tel: 01702 215200
E-mail: joechesterton@southend.gov.uk

John Williams
Strategic Director (Legal and 
Democratic Services)
(Monitoring Officer)

2nd Floor, Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend-
on-Sea, SS2 6EN
Tel: 01702 215102
E-mail: johnwilliams@southend.gov.uk

Andrew Barnes
Head of Internal Audit

9th Floor, Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend-on-
Sea, SS2 6EN
Tel: 07827 348375
E-mail: andrewbarnes@southend.gov.uk

Protect
(Independent charity for 
whistleblowing, providing free 
independent legal advice)

CAN Mezzanine, 7-14 Great Dover Street, London 
SE1 4YR 
Tel: 020 3117 2520
E-mail: whistle@protect-advice.org.uk
Web: pcaw.org.uk

74



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Counter-Money Laundering Policy & Strategy 

Version 2.1 Jan 2019
75



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2A

                                

WHISTLEBLOWING
"CONFIDENTIAL REPORTING"

POLICY AND PROCEDURE

PRODUCED BY: HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

SUBJECT TO BI ANNUAL REVIEW

PRESENTED TO:
CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM: AUGUST  2019
CABINET: SEPTEMBER 2019
AUDIT COMMITTEE: OCTOBER 2019

77



WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

1

VERSION CONTROL SHEET

Title: Whistleblowing Policy

Purpose: The policy and procedure have been developed so that council
workers will know how to raise concerns in the right way at an early 
stage, and to enable managers to understand their responsibilities 
in relation to allegations of misconduct and impropriety.

Owner: Monitoring Officer

Approved by: Corporate Management Team – 07/08/2019
Cabinet – 17/09/2019

Date: Approved – 17/09/2019
Implemented – 18/09/2019

Version 
Number:

2.1

Status: Draft

Review 
Frequency:

Bi-annually, subject to legislative changes and operational changes

Next Review 
Date:

September 2021

 

Change History
Date Change Details Approved by
March 
2013

Revision of formatting and reporting 
methods, legislative changes.

Joe Chesterton, Head of 
Finance & Resources

August 
2019

Revision of formatting, reporting details and 
officer details.

Joe Chesterton, 
Executive Director 
(Finance & Resources)
John Williams, Executive 
Director (Legal & 
Democratic Services) 

78



WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

2

INTRODUCTION

The council is committed to providing the highest quality service to those that live, 
work, visit, do business and study in the borough. This involves ensuring that the local 
community can have full trust and confidence in the way the Council manages its 
services and resources and making sure that all those who are vulnerable such as 
children, the elderly and people with learning disabilities are provided for safely, 
effectively and in accordance with best practice.
Employees, workers or contractors at one time or another may have concerns about 
what is happening at their work with Southend-on-Sea Borough Council (“the 
Council”).  Usually these concerns are easily resolved by speaking to their manager 
without using a formal process. The Council has this Whistleblowing Policy and 
Procedure to enable employees, workers or contractors to raise more serious 
concerns. 
This Whistleblowing Policy cannot be used by employees who have a grievance 
regarding their own employment, who should use the Grievance processes, or by 
members of the public, who should use the Council’s Complaints processes.
The Council is committed to the highest standards of openness, probity and 
accountability. In line with that commitment we encourage employees, workers and 
contractors with serious concerns about any aspect of the Council's work to come 
forward and voice their concerns. The Council would rather they raised the matter 
when it is just a concern rather than wait for proof.  It is recognised that certain cases 
will have to proceed on a confidential basis.  This Whistleblowing Policy makes it clear 
that such concerns can be raised without fear of reprisals.
This Whistleblowing Policy is not intended for initial reporting of minor lapses of 
standards, inaction or incidents. If, however, employees, workers or contractors have 
something more serious that is troubling them which they have discussed with their 
manager but feel that they have not been taken seriously, or due to the sensitivity of 
the matter feel they cannot raise their concerns within their service, then they should 
use this Whistleblowing Policy. 

LEGISLATIVE BACKGROUND

The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 protects workers making disclosures about 
certain matters of concern, where those disclosures are made in accordance with the 
Act's provisions.
The 1998 Act is incorporated into the Employment Rights Act 1996, which also 
protects employees who take action over, or raise concerns about health and safety at 
work. 

79



WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

3

DEFINITION

Any serious concerns that employees, workers or contractors have about any aspect 
of service provision or the conduct of Councillors, officers of the Council or others 
acting on behalf of the Council can be reported under the Whistleblowing Policy. 
Workers are protected by law (under the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998) from any
possible reprisals or victimisation for having raised any issues where they reasonably
believe that in appropriate actions are being, or will be, undertaken.  These may 
include:

 a criminal offence

 fraud & corruption, including bribery

 failure to comply with legislation

 failure to comply with good practice, especially where this endangers children 
and/or vulnerable adults

 disclosure relating to miscarriage of justice

 health and safety risks, including risks to the public as well as other employees

 damage or danger to the environment

 sexual, physical, emotional or psychological abuse of clients

 failure to comply with the Employees or Members Code of Conduct 

 theft of Council property and assets

 failure to comply with the Council’s rules on gifts and hospitality

 serious mismanagement or failure to manage

 continuing inappropriate conduct or behaviour or performance by any employee 
which has been reported to a relevant manager, especially harassment or bullying 
or discriminatory behaviour. This may include, but not be confined to, actions 
considered to be based upon the race, gender, disability, age, religion/belief or 
sexual orientation of the victim 

 a cover up of, or failure to report, any of the above. 
Under the Public Information Disclosure Act 1998 a “protected disclosure” is specified 
under section 43B. Not all disclosures detailed in this paragraph offer ‘protected 
disclosure’ under the Act. However the Council undertakes to extend the same 
protection for all disclosures wherever possible.

COMMITMENT OF THE COUNCIL

The Council is committed to considering the concerns of employees, workers or 
contractors and will take actions as appropriate in line with the Whistleblowing 
Procedure outlined in this policy.

80



WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

4

SAFEGUARDS

Harassment or victimisation 

The Council recognises that the decision to report a concern can be a difficult one to 
make, not least because of the fear of reprisal from those responsible for the 
malpractice. The Council will not tolerate harassment or victimisation and will take 
action to protect employees, workers or contractors when they raise a concern in good 
faith.  
The Council will treat any harassment or victimisation as a serious disciplinary offence 
to be dealt with under the Discipline and Dismissal at Work Policy.
This does not mean that if employees are already the subject of disciplinary, 
redundancy or other procedures that those procedures will be halted as a result of 
their whistleblowing.

Confidentiality

The Council recognises that employees, workers or contractors may nonetheless want 
to raise a concern in confidence under this Whistleblowing Policy. If an employee, 
worker or contractor asks the Council to protect their identity, the Council will do its 
best not to disclose it without their consent. If the situation arises where the Council is 
not able to resolve the concern without revealing the employee, worker or contractors 
identity (for instance because their evidence is needed in court), we will discuss with 
them whether and how we can proceed.

Anonymous allegations

This Whistleblowing Policy encourages employees, workers or contractors to put their 
name to their allegation. Concerns raised anonymously are much less powerful but 
they will be considered at the discretion of the Council. 
In exercising the discretion the factors to be taken into account would include:

 the seriousness of the issues raised

 the credibility of the concern

 the likelihood of confirming the allegation.

Untrue allegations

If an employee makes an allegation in good faith but it is not confirmed by the 
investigation no action will be taken against them. If however, an employee makes a 
malicious or vexatious allegation, disciplinary action may be taken against them.

THE MONITORING OFFICER (EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC 
SERVICES))

The Executive Director (Legal and Democratic Services) is the Monitoring Officer for 
the Council. The Monitoring Officer has overall responsibility for the maintenance and 
operation of this Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure.

81



WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

5

The Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate maintains a record of concerns raised 
under the Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure and the outcomes of any investigation 
undertaken on behalf of the Monitoring Officer, who will report if necessary to the 
Standards Committee.  This is done in a form that does not endanger employee, 
worker or contractor confidentiality.   
The Monitoring Officer will consult with such other Council officers as he or she 
considers necessary and may arrange for any investigation to be conducted and dealt 
with in such manner as he or she decides.

SCOPE OF POLICY

 This Whistleblowing Policy applies to all employees, workers and contractors 
working for the Council, for example agency workers, builders, drivers etc. to 
enable them to raise serious concerns that they have about any aspect of service 
provision or the conduct of Councillors, officers of the Council or others acting on 
behalf of the Council

 This Whistleblowing Policy cannot be used by employees who have a grievance 
regarding their own employment, who should use the Grievance processes, or by 
members of the public, who should use the Council’s Complaints processes.

DELEGATION

 All managers are authorised to discuss and act upon employees concerns about 
what is happening at work without using the formal process of the Whistleblowing 
Policy

 The Monitoring Officer (Executive Director (Legal & Democratic Services)), 
Corporate Directors, Heads of Service and the Head of Internal Audit are 
authorised to act (in conjunction with the Counter Fraud & Investigation 
Directorate) upon serious concerns raised under the Whistleblowing Policy, in 
accordance with the Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure

 All concerns raised under this Whistleblowing Policy will be notified to the Counter 
Fraud & investigation Directorate

 All concerns raised under this Whistleblowing Policy regarding financial issues will 
also be notified to the Head of Internal Audit.

82



WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

6

WHISTLEBLOWING PROCEDURE

HOW TO RAISE A CONCERN

Employees who raise concerns that fall within the scope of other Council Procedures 
will not be dealt with under this Whistleblowing Procedure, but will be advised on the 
appropriate procedure to use. Such employees will still receive protection as detailed 
in the Whistleblowing Policy. 
Employees, workers or contractors should normally raise concerns with their 
immediate manager, without needing to use the Whistleblowing Policy. This depends, 
however, on the seriousness and sensitivity of the issues involved and who is thought 
to be involved in the malpractice. 
Where a concern is serious or where it is a concern about the line manager, or having 
made a report they believe that their manager has failed to take appropriate action, the 
employee, worker or contractor should contact:

 the Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate on 03000 999111 or via 
counterfraud@southend.gov.uk or

 the Council's Confidential Report Line on 01702 215215 

Concerns should be raised in writing, clearly marked “Whistleblowing, Counter 
Fraud & Investigation Directorate” and placed in an envelope marked “Staff in 
Confidence". The background and history of the concern (giving names, dates, and 
place where possible), and the reasons for the concern should be set out.
The earlier employees, workers or contractors express a concern, the easier it is to 
take action.  Employees may invite a trade union representative or work colleague to 
raise a matter on their behalf.
All concerns raised under this Whistleblowing Policy regarding financial issues will also 
be notified to the Head of Internal Audit.

HOW THE COUNCIL WILL RESPOND 

Once an employee, worker or contractor has raised their concern under the 
Whistleblowing Policy with the Counter Fraud & Investigation Directorate, initial 
enquiries will be made to decide if an investigation is appropriate and if so what form 
the investigation should take.   
The employee, worker or contractor will be advised of the following:

 who is considering the issue

 how that person can be contacted

 whether their further assistance may be needed.  
The senior officer responsible for considering the issue will write to the employee, 
worker or contractor summarising their concern and setting out how the Council 
proposes to handle it, if requested to do so. The employee, worker or contractor will 
also be requested to state any personal interest they may have in the matter.

83

mailto:counterfraud@southend.gov.uk


WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

7

The overriding principle which the Council will have in mind is the public interest. 
Concerns or allegations which fall within the scope of specific procedures (for 
example, child protection or discrimination issues) will normally be referred for 
consideration under those procedures. The action taken by the Council will depend on 
the nature of the concern and may:

 be resolved by agreed action without the need for investigation

 be investigated internally

 be referred to the police

 be referred to the external auditor

 form the subject of an independent inquiry.
The amount of contact between the employee, worker or contractor and the officers 
investigating the concerns will depend on the concerns raised, but the Council may 
need to seek further information from the employee, worker or contractor. Any 
meetings may be arranged on or off site and an employee may be accompanied by a 
friend, union or professional body representative. 
While the purpose of this Whistleblowing Policy is to enable the Council to investigate 
possible malpractice and take appropriate steps to deal with it, they will provide as 
much feedback to the employee, worker or contractor as they properly can.  If 
requested, confirmation of the response may be provided in writing.  It may not, 
however, be possible to advise the precise action that will be taken where this would 
infringe a duty of confidence owed by the Council to someone else.

HOW A CONCERN CAN BE TAKEN FURTHER

If you are unsure whether or how to use this procedure or want independent advice, 
you may contact the independent charity, Protect (formerly known as Public Concern 
at Work) on 020 3117 2520. Their lawyers can give you free confidential advice at any 
stage on how to raise a concern about serious malpractice at work.
The Whistleblowing Policy is intended to provide employees, workers or contractors 
with the reassurance they may need to raise concerns internally and that they will be 
satisfied with any action taken. 
However, if they are not, and feel that it is appropriate to take the matter outside the 
Council or if they feel unable to raise their concerns internally, the Council would rather 
they raised the matter with an appropriate regulator than not at all. The following are 
possible contact points:

 Local Council Member

 Local Government Ombudsman

 The employee's trade union

 Local Citizens Advice Bureau

 The Police

 Relevant professional bodies, regulatory or other organisations.
If employees, workers or contractors take their concerns outside the Council 
they should take care not to disclose any confidential information.

84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



1

  Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

Report of Executive Director (Legal & Democratic Services)   
to

Audit Committee
on

23 October 2019

Report prepared by: Tim MacGregor –Policy Manager 

A Simple and Effective Governance Framework 

Executive Councillor – Councillor Gilbert
A Part 1 Public Agenda Item

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To review the Council’s Local Code of Governance (now to be called ‘A simple 
and effective governance framework’). 

2. Recommendations

2.1 To recommend to Cabinet that they approve the revised Local Code of 
Governance – A simple and effective governance framework – as set out at 
Appendix A. 

2.2 Once approved, that the Council’s Constitution is updated to reflect the 
revised framework.

3. Background

3.1 The Council is required to have in place a Local Code of Governance that sets out 
its governance framework.  The framework outlines the Council’s approach to 
good governance and enables the annual review of the effectiveness of internal 
control to be carried out.  This review, a legal requirement, is undertaken via the 
Annual Governance Statement presented to Audit Committee each year, signed 
by the Leader and Chief Executive, and is published as part of the annual 
statement of accounts.  

 
3.2 The 1992 Cadbury Committee report, set out recommendations on the 

arrangement of company boards and accounting systems to mitigate corporate 
risk and failures and defined corporate governance as the ‘system by which 
organisations are directed and controlled’.  Many of these recommendations were 
adopted by public sector bodies and complemented by the development of the 
Committee on Standards in Public life ‘Nolan principles’ to promote ethical 
standards across the whole of public life in the UK.   

Agenda
Item No.

135

6



2

3.3 A good governance framework for local government was developed by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of 
Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) and provides an over-arching 
framework to local authority local codes of governance.  The framework has been 
revised a number of times, most recently in 2016, and the Council adopted the 
framework’s seven core principles as the basis on which to operate.

3.4 In summary, the framework states that ‘the overall aim is to ensure that resources 
are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to priorities, that 
there is sound and inclusive decision making and that there is clear accountability 
for the use of those resources in order to achieve desired outcomes for service 
users and communities.’

3.5 It is part of the Council’s Control Environment Assurance, which also includes the:
- risk management strategy
- counter fraud, bribery and corruption policy and strategy
- counter money laundering policy and strategy
- whistleblowing policy
- directed surveillance procedures.  

4. A Simple and Effective Governance Framework - 2019

4.1 The current Local Code of Governance (agreed in 2016) has, therefore, been 
revised to reflect the direction of the council in recent years.  This includes the 
adoption of the Southend 2050 Road Map, the council’s new values and 
behaviours and changes to officer governance arrangements.  It has also been 
simplified to remove (but provide links to) the CIPFA / SOLACE sub-principles of 
good governance and the Nolan principles of public life, but otherwise retains the 
core content of the 2016 Local Code of Governance. 

4.2 The revised framework covers the following areas:

 What governance is;
 The principles, values and behaviours to be adopted, setting the tone for how 

the organisation operates but also how councillors and officers conduct 
themselves;

 The business management processes the Council operates to enable it to 
successfully deliver desired outcomes; 

 How the principles, values, behaviours and business management 
arrangements should be implemented;

 The arrangements to complete the annual review of their adequacy and 
operation throughout the year, used to support the production of the Annual 
Governance Statement;

 Evidencing effective implementation.   

4.3 It will be necessary to ensure that Internal Audit's Strategy and Audit Plan, the 
Audit Committee's terms of reference and work programme and the Annual 
Governance Statement are consistent with the framework. 

136



3

5. Other Options  

5.1 Not adopting a revised simple and effective governance framework that 
incorporates would mean the Council’s governance framework would lack clarity 
and would hinder delivery of the Southend 2050 outcomes. 

6. Corporate Implications

6.1 Contribution to the Southend 2050 Road Map

Simple and effective governance is one of the seven transforming together 
‘conditions’, identified as required for the delivery of the Southend 2050 ambition 
and desired outcomes for 2023.

6.2 Financial Implications - None specific

6.3 Legal Implications

Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, Section 4 requires that the 
relevant body must conduct a review at least once in a year of the effectiveness of 
its system of internal control.  
The findings of the review must be considered by Council or by a committee.  
Following the review, the body or committee must approve an annual governance 
statement prepared in accordance with proper practices in relation to internal 
control.  
Proper practice in this sense is defined as guidance issued by the relevant 
professional body, which for local government is the CIPFA / SOLACE Framework 
(refer background papers).  This requires local authorities to produce a Local 
Code of Governance and sets out the operational framework that it should adopt.  
Therefore compliance with this Code satisfies the requirements of the Accounts 
and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.

6.4 People Implications 

All members and staff need to adopt the principles and the values and behaviours 
outlined in the framework and apply the business management processes required 
within their service areas.

6.5 Property Implications – None 

6.6 Consultation

The relevant stakeholders have been consulted.

6.7 Equalities and Diversity Implications

This is reflected in both the principles, values and business management 
processes to be adopted.

6.8 Risk Assessment

Failure to operate robust governance arrangements can potentially lead to poor 
management, performance, stewardship of public money, public engagement and 
ultimately, poor outcomes for citizens and service users.  It increases the risk that 
corporate priorities will not be delivered.

137



4

6.9 Value for Money

This is reflected in both the principles, values and business management 
processes to be adopted.

6.10 Community Safety Implications - None

6.11 Environmental Impact – None

7. Background Papers

 Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) / Society of 
Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers (SOLACE) publication:  
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government – Framework (2016).

 Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) / Society of 
Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers (SOLACE) publication:  
Guidance Note for English Authorities

 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015

8. Appendices 

Appendix 1 – A simple and effective governance framework – Southend on 
Sea Borough Council’s Local Code of Governance 

138



 

 

1 

 

  

 
A simple and effective 

governance framework 
Southend-on-Sea Borough Council’s Local 

Code of Governance (Draft) 

 

Produced:    Tim MacGregor – Policy Manager 
Next Review:   2022 
Time table for approval:   Good Governance Group –  22.8.19 

Corporate Management Team – 25.9.19                        
Audit Committee – 23.10.19 
Cabinet – 5.11.19 

139



 

 

2 

 

1. What is governance and good governance? 

Governance is defined by CIPFA and SOLACE as ‘the arrangements put in place to ensure that the 

intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved’.   Good governance helps deliver the 

outcomes desired by an organisation.  

 

The Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework, published by CIPFA in association 

with SOLACE, sets the standard for local authority governance in the UK1.  It does so by stating that:  ‘To 

deliver good governance in the public sector, both governing bodies and individuals working for public 

sector entities must try to achieve their entities objectives while acting in the public interest at all times. 

Acting in the public interest implies primary consideration of the benefits for society, which should result 

in positive outcomes for service users and other stakeholders’.  

 

All councils should aim to meet the standards of the best which means governance arrangements should 

not only be sound but also be seen to be sound.  Achieving high standards of governance encourages 

others to have confidence in engaging with the Council, enabling it to be more effective in undertaking its 

role of community leader.   

2. Purpose of the framework  

This framework, adopted by the Council, is in line with good practice guidance, including the principles 

that underpin it.  It is part of the Council’s control environment assurance arrangements (outlined further 

in section 11). 

 

The Council is accountable for the proper conduct of public business.  This means ensuring it operates 

in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly 

accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.  In doing this, the governance 

framework brings together an underlying set of values, legislative requirements, governance principles 

and management processes that enables effective outcomes.   

 

The framework should be proportionate to the risk environment.  As such one of the seven conditions the 

Council has established as required to achieve its ambition and desired outcomes is ‘simple and 

effective governance’.  

 

The underlying principles should be considered in the light of the key roles for local authorities identified 

in the guidance:  

 

                                                

1
 Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016) Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

& Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers 

140

https://www.southend.gov.uk/southend2050/
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition


 

 

3 

1. To engage in effective partnerships and provide leadership for and with the community; 

2. To ensure the delivery of high quality local services whether directly or in partnership or by 

commissioning; 

3. To perform a stewardship role which protects the interests of local people and makes the best use 

of resources; and 

4. To develop citizenship and local democracy.  

 

The framework puts high standards of conduct and leadership at the heart of good governance, placing 

responsibility on councillors and officers to demonstrate leadership by behaving in ways that exemplify 

high standards of conduct and so set the tone for the rest of the organisation.  The Council discharges 

accountability for the proper conduct of public business, through the publication of an Annual 

Governance Statement (AGS) that will make the adopted practice open and explicit. 

This AGS also sets out: 

 Accountability for the governance of the Council, as well as the principles and values by which 

the Council operates; 

 How the principles are put into practice to enable service delivery to reflect community need and 

how evidence is obtained to ensure they operate effectively throughout the year; 

 The annual reporting process and 

 How the framework is communicated to councillors, staff and other relevant parties. 

 

3. Accountability 

Councillors are collectively responsible for the governance of the Council.  Council delegates 

responsibility for independently checking that an effective governance framework (which includes a 

sound system of internal control) exists and operates effectively throughout the year, to the Audit 

Committee.  

 

The Leader of the Council and Chief Executive: 

 Are accountable for ensuring good governance in their authority  

 Sign the Annual Governance Statement on behalf of the Council.   

 

  

141



 

 

4 

4. Principles 

The Council has adopted the seven core principles from the 2016 CIPFA/Solace Framework  as the 

basis on which it wants to operate as outlined below. 

 

 

The CIPFA/Solace governance framework provides more detail on how these core principles should be 

applied in practice.  It provides context, along with the Nolan Principles of Public Life, for the Council’s 

own values and behaviours, agreed in 2019.  The adoption and implementation of these values and 

behaviours by staff and councillors is critical for Council to achieve its ambition and desired outcomes - 

as set out in the Southend 2050 Road Map.  

  

142

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition


 

 

5 

5. Values and behaviours 

In discharging their roles and implementing the principles outlined above at an individual level, 

councillors and staff are expected to adopt and enact; 

 The Nolan seven principles of public life  

 The Council’s own values and behaviours: 
 

Council values: 

 Inclusive – we put people at the heart of what we do 

 Collaborative – we work together 

 Honest – we are honest, fair and accountable 

 Proud – we are proud to make lives better 
 

Behaviours expected of councillors and staff: 

 Driving positive change 

 Trust and respect 

 Demonstrating strong leadership 

 Act with integrity and behaving responsibly 

 Building relationships to work well together 
 

Adhering to these values and behaviours will help ensure that councillors and staff conduct complies 

with the overarching good governance principles.  

  

143

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life


 

 

6 

6. Putting the principles into practice 

All organisations, whether public or private, large or small, need to operate core management processes 

to enable them to deliver their vision, aims and objectives. These processes are outlined below under 

the Council’s main management activities below: 

 

 

CITIZENS 

 Community participation 

 Co-design and production with citizens  

 Customer satisfaction 

 Consultation and engagement 

 Complaints, compliments and comments  

 

 

PERFORMANCE 

 Outcome based business planning and 
strategy  

 Decision making / constitution  

 Policy framework and procedures  

 Performance management 

 Data quality 

 Risk management, whistleblowing  

 Business continuity 

 Information management security 

 Contract management  

 Project management  

 Change / transformation management  

RESOURCES 

 Outcome based financial planning & 
reporting, budgetary control and treasury 
management 

 Commissioning 

 Procurement 

 Asset Management 

 Fraud & Corruption and Insurance  

 Value for Money 

PEOPLE 

 Workforce management & development 

 Values and behaviours - codes of 
conduct for members and staff  

 Staff performance management 

 Health and safety  

 Ethical governance 

 

 

The Council also has a very specific responsibility for ensuring that: 

 

 The financial management of the body is adequate  

 It has a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and 

which includes its arrangements for the management of risk.   

 

 

144



 

 

7 

All services are responsible for maintaining proportionate but sound operational procedures and 

processes that adequately mitigate risks that may result in a service failure or the failure to deliver 

service objectives. Application of the framework outlined should put the Council in a strong position to 

successfully deliver whatever services it chooses to. 

7.  Effective implementation 

7.1 The approach 

In order to ensure that the governance framework set out above is in place and operating properly 

throughout the year, the Council has adopted the concept contained in the three lines of defence2 

model, as shown below. 

 

Evidence that the governance framework is being applied is obtained via: 

 

7.2 The first line of defence: 

Operational management, which is responsible for the effective and consistent application of these 

requirements in their area of operation.  This includes both behavioural as well as procedural 

arrangements. 

 

7.3 The second line of defence: 

The ‘owner’ or ‘sponsor’ who is accountable for the overall operation of the corporate management or 

service specific process and should ensure that: 

 It is fit for purpose (for example, based upon relevant good practice), regularly reviewed and 

approved by senior management and members; 

                                                

2
 Based upon general industry good practice, more specifically guidance issued by the European Confederation of 

Institutes of Internal Auditing “monitoring the effectiveness of internal control, internal audits and risk management 
systems” September 2010 

1ST LINE OF 

DEFENCE 

Operational 

Management 

2ND LINE OF 

DEFENCE 

Policy owner 

or sponsor 

3RD LINE OF 

DEFENCE 

Internal Audit 

SERVICE, DEPARTMENT OR CORPORATE SENIOR MANAGEMENT  

CABINET / AUDIT COMMITTEE / COUNCIL 

E
x

te
rn

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 

R
e
g

u
la

to
rs

 /
 

p
e
e

rs
 

145



 

 

8 

 It is constructed so that evidence of its application is easily produced, i.e., as ‘business as usual’; 

 There are proportionate and cost-effective mechanisms in place to enable them to confirm that 

operational managers are applying it effectively and consistently; and  

 Informative, regular and timely reports are provided to senior management to confirm the process 

has been operating effectively and consistently, identifying any remedial actions required should 

this not be the case. 

7.4 The third line of defence which is: 

Internal Audit who provide independent assurance to senior management and the Audit Committee, on 

how effectively the first and second lines of defence have been operating.  

7.5 System of Internal Control   

Within this, it is incumbent on all staff to ensure that: 

 sufficient checks (controls) are built into all systems, processes and activities to ensure that they 

consistently and effectively deliver the objectives required of them (e.g. through risk management / 

mitigation); 

 sufficient evidence can be obtained throughout the year (via key management controls) to ensure 

these checks are operating as they should and, therefore, that the systems, processes and service 

objectives are being delivered. 

 

7.6 Other potential assurance 

This can be obtained from external sources such as external audit, regulators, peers as well as the 

public and media and can be considered a fourth line of defence where any of these sources’ activity is 

relevant and robust.  

 

  

146



 

 

9 

8. Key Committees 

The (‘full’) Council is responsible for ensuring the organisation has good governance arrangements.  It 

can discharge this duty itself or delegate this role to a committee.   

The Council has delegated this function to the Audit Committee.  However, there are other key council 

bodies that have a significant role to play within the governance framework: 

 

 Full Council is responsible for setting the budget and policy framework.   

 

 The Cabinet is responsible for the majority of functions of the Council.  Executive decisions are 

taken by the Cabinet collectively or by officers acting under delegated powers.  Cabinet leads the 

Council’s drive for value for money, the preparation of the Council’s vision, policies and budget 

and community participation processes.  It takes in year decisions on resources and priorities and 

is the focus for forming partnerships to address local needs.  

 

 Scrutiny Committees review decisions made or actions taken in relation to any of the Council’s 

functions, consider any matter affecting the area or its residents and exercise the right to call in, 

for reconsideration, decisions made by Cabinet, not yet implemented.  They undertake reviews of 

Council policy and practice and suggest ways these could be improved. 

 

 Audit Committee is responsible for independently checking that appropriate governance 

arrangements (including the system of internal control) are in place, operating effectively 

throughout the year and that actions required to strengthen these arrangements are addressed, 

in a timely manner.  Its work programme is designed to provide it with sufficient evidence to 

conclude that the Annual Governance Statement accurately reflects the governance 

arrangements as operated for the year in question. 

 

 The Standards Committee is responsible for promoting and maintaining high standards of 

conduct by councillors and co-opted members, and assisting them to observe the Councillors 

code of conduct.   

 

 The Health & Wellbeing Board provides strategic leadership to improve the health and 

wellbeing of local people and reduce health inequalities.  The Board works to understand the 

local community’s needs, agree priorities and encourage commissioners to work in a more joined 

up way.  

 

 The Community Safety Partnership provides strategic leadership in their statutory responsibility 

for reducing crime and disorder, substance misuse and re-offending in their area. 

 

147



 

 

10 

It is necessary sometimes for information to go to more than one committee in order for them to 

discharge their respective responsibilities.     

9. Good Governance Group 

The Council has an officer Good Governance Group that meets regularly to oversee the delivery of the 

governance framework. There is a terms of reference for this group and it reports to the Chief Executive 

and provides reports to the Corporate Management Team and Audit Committee.  

 

In addition to the Corporate Management Team, key officer boards ensure good governance in relation 

to: 

 Investment 

 Commissioning 

 Growth & infrastructure 

 Innovation and change 

 

10. Annual review and reporting 

Local authorities are required to undertake an annual review their governance arrangements and 

evidence that they are: 

 Up to date, fit for purpose and comply with the CIPFA/Solace Framework; 

 Consistently applied across the organisation at all service levels;   

 Being strengthened, as necessary, where improvement opportunities have been identified. 

 

Such reviews are reported to the Audit Committee, within the Council and externally with the published 

accounts.   

 

11. Evidence and Assurance 

Evidence that the governance framework is operating as it should, is obtained in a number of ways.  This 

includes:  

 

Annual assurance obtained from:  

 Key elements of the Control Environment Assurance, including the Council’s approach to and 

reporting on: 

- Risk management  

- Counter fraud, bribery and corruption 

- Counter money laundering 

- Whistleblowing 

- Directed surveillance 

 

148



 

 

11 

The owners or sponsors of key management processes, in relation to the adequacy of and 

compliance with key management arrangements 

 Other significant functions / service providers (e.g. project / contract managers) that confirms 

compliance with the relevant corporate approach or requirements. 

 The Good Governance Group reviewing evidence provided, each year, highlighting any areas that 

require senior management attention.  Departmental management teams will review actions 

requiring attention through the normal performance management process.   

 Compliance with the treasury management policy. 

 Approval of the financial statements. 

 Revenue and capital monitoring. 

 Performance management.  

12. Independent evidence  

Independent evidence primarily takes the form of:  

 The Head of Internal Audit’s annual report, which includes an opinion on the overall system of 

internal control and whether the internal audit functions have complied with professional standards. 

 The external auditor’s Annual Governance Report to those charged with governance. 

 External inspections and reviews from regulatory, professional, peer and representative bodies.   

13. Annual Governance Statement 

The Council’s Annual Governance Statement is developed by the Good Governance Group, during the 

year and will be considered by the Corporate Management Team before being reported to the Audit 

Committee as part of the annual Statement of Accounts. The Audit Committee considers whether the 

Annual Governance Statement accurately reflects its understanding of how the Council’s governance 

arrangements have operated for the year in question. 

 

The AGS is signed by the Leader and Chief Executive on behalf of the Council.  

14. Communications 

This framework forms part of the Council’s Constitution which is available on Council’s website and, 

therefore, accessible to all staff, councillors, the public and other stakeholders. The framework is 

provided to new councillors and content outlined to newly appointed staff as part of the induction 

process.  

Training on aspects of the governance framework or the application of key business management 

processes is provided as required. 

 

The Head of Internal Audit can be contacted on 01702 215802 and the Policy Manager can be 

contacted on 01702 534025 with any queries regarding the framework.  

149



This page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit Service, Quarterly 
Performance Report 

Page 1 of 4

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To update the Audit Committee on the progress made in delivering the Internal 
Audit Strategy and Plan for 2019/20.

2. Recommendations

2.1 The Audit Committee notes the progress made in delivering the 2019/20 
Internal Audit Strategy.

3. Internal Audit Plan Status

3.1 Appendix 1 sets out the current status of the audit work planned for the year as 
at 11th October 2019.  This highlights where audits contained in the original plan 
considered by the Audit Committee in March 2019 have changed and why. This 
includes adding audits to the plan from the Risk Watch list, as we have increased 
the team’s capacity by recruiting more in-house audit staff, reducing the need to 
use the framework contract to resource audits, and additional Advice and 
Support work that we have been asked to contribute to. 

3.2 Appendix 2 sets out the results of the work completed since the last progress 
report to the Audit Committee in July.

4. Performance Targets 

4.1 As outlined in the Strategy presented to the March 2019 Audit Committee, the 
team will be reporting on a more limited set of indicators this year given the 
amount of work that is still being contracted out.

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

Report of the Chief Executive 
to

Audit Committee 
on

23rd October 2019

Report prepared by: Andrew Barnes, Head of Internal Audit

 Internal Audit Services, Quarterly Performance Report 
A Part 1 Public Agenda Item

Agenda
Item No.

151

7



Internal Audit Service, Quarterly 
Performance Report 

Page 2 of 4

4.2 So as at 11th October 2019: 

 the team has had 4.5 of sickness absence since 1st April 2019 (which impacts 
on productivity) and equates to 0.76 days per FTE

 in terms of the jobs in the plan:

 14% of audits are completed

 2% of audits have reports being produced or discussed 

 13% of audits are in progress

 14% of audits are being scoped and planned or have terms of reference 
produced 

 53% of audits are resourced and booked, but yet to be started

 4% of audits have resourcing being finalised
4.3 A programme of stakeholder surveys has been produced and these will be 

completed throughout the remainder of the year as audits are completed. 
Appendix 3 reflects the results of 7 surveys covering 6 audits undertaken since 
the last meeting.  Overall the feedback obtained remains very positive.  The key 
overall message is that stakeholders find the Council's Internal Audit service to 
be professional, approachable, flexible and of tangible benefit to their services as 
well as the Council as a whole.

4.4 In addition it is worth noting some very positive feedback that was provided in 
respect of one complicated area that we have audited. The respondent provided 
a range of positive feedback and concluded that ‘I welcome internal audits. It 
gives a fresh pair of eyes and provides challenge in a constructive way. I have 
always learnt so much by going through the process.’ which is very much what 
we are trying to deliver as a team.

5. Resourcing

5.1 Since the last report to the Audit Committee in May 2019:

 a Senior Auditor has been promoted to Audit Manager

 an Auditor joined the team in September

 a Senior Auditor has been appointed and is due to join the team in October.
5.2 That leaves the combined team with four vacancies. The salaries of the vacant 

posts are currently being used to fund audit resource brought in from suitable 
accountancy firms to assist with delivery of the audit plan. Time is also being 
spent supporting the development of in-house staff, with action plans in place to 
support and monitor the progress of their development, to enhance the 
effectiveness of the team overall. 

5.3 The expected requirements of the internal audit service into the future continue to 
evolve and this has been assessed to determine the most appropriate team 
model utilising the financial resources available. Once the current team 
resourcing activities are complete, this will then be implemented to result in an 
appropriate mix of experienced staff, trainees who will be put through a relevant 
training programme and externally sourced skills. This will enable the team to 
deliver the internal audit service required by the organisations that it serves.

152



Internal Audit Service, Quarterly 
Performance Report 

Page 3 of 4

6. Corporate Implications

6.1 Contribution to Council’s Aims and Priorities 
Audit work contributes to the delivery of all corporate Aims and Priorities.  

6.2 Financial Implications
The Audit Plan will be delivered within the approved budget.
Any financial implications arising from identifying and managing fraud risk will be 
considered through the normal financial management processes.  

6.3 Legal Implications
The UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Audit Committee to 
approve (but not direct) the annual Internal Audit Plan and then receive regular 
updates on its delivery.  This report contributes to discharging this duty.

6.4 People and Property Implications
People and property issues that are relevant to an audit within the Audit Plan will 
be considered as part of the review.

6.5 Consultation 
The audit risk assessment and the Audit Plan are periodically discussed with the 
Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives and Directors before being reported to 
Corporate Management Team and the Audit Committee.  
All terms of reference and draft reports are discussed with the relevant Deputy 
Chief Executives and Directors before being finalised.

6.6 Equalities Impact Assessment
The relevance of equality and diversity is considered during the initial planning 
stage of the each audit before the Terms of Reference are agreed.  

6.7 Risk Assessment
Failure to operate a robust assurance process (which incorporates the internal 
audit function) increases the risk that there are inadequacies in the internal control 
framework that may impact of the Council’s ability to deliver its corporate aims and 
priorities.  
The main risks the team continues to manage are the:

 potential loss of in-house staff and the ability of the service to replace this 
resource in a timely manner

 lack of management capacity to support and process work in a timely manner 
and provide strategic leadership to the team

 possibility that the external supplier won't deliver contracted in work within the 
required deadlines to the expected quality standards

 need to maintain relationships with clients / partners until the service has been 
rebuilt. 

153



Internal Audit Service, Quarterly 
Performance Report 

Page 4 of 4

6.8 Value for Money 
Opportunities to improve value for money in the delivery of services are identified 
during some reviews and recommendations made as appropriate. 
Internal Audit also considers whether it provides a value for money service 
periodically.

6.9 Community Safety Implications and Environmental Impact
These issues are only considered if relevant to a specific audit review.

7. Background Papers

 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015

 UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

 CIPFA: Local Government Application Note for the UK Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards

8. Appendices

Appendix 1 Internal Audit Plan 2019/20
Appendix 2A Assurance summary: satisfactory assurance
Appendix 2B Assurance summary: partial assurance
Appendix 2C Assurance summary: other audits and grants
Appendix 2D Assurance summary: follow up audits
Appendix 3 Stakeholder survey results

154



Appendix 1: Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

Dept & 
(Lead)

Service Activity Fraud 
risk 

Status at October 2019

1

Managing the Business

All Outcomes

All Risk Management Strategy
To lead on the Council’s work to embed a 
robust and efficient risk management 
framework into its wider governance 
arrangements.

No Risk Management Policy 
Statement and Strategy 
agreed by Cabinet September 
2019.
Agreed Implementation 
Action Plan to test and roll 
out the new approach 
between September 2019 to 
May 2020.
(See also IT Risk Assessment 
and Better Queensway below)

PL
(ST)

IT Risk Assessment
To undertake a baseline assessment of IT risks 
against a standard good practice framework 
and use this to develop the IT element of the 
Audit Plan going forward.

No Focus will be informed by the 
IT risk workshop taking place 
with the service on 23 
October 2019.

Implementing Action Plans

F&R
(JC)

Shareholder Board
To check that actions agreed have been 
effectively implemented and are now 
embedded into the day to day operation of the 
service.

No

L&D
(JW)

Emergency Planning 
To check that actions agreed have been 
effectively implemented and are now 
embedded into the day to day operation of the 
service.

No

L&D
(JW)

Business Continuity
To check that actions agreed have been 
effectively implemented and are now 
embedded into the day to day operation of the 
service.

No

All planned for January to 
March 2020. 

155



Appendix 1: Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

Dept & 
(Lead)

Service Activity Fraud 
risk 

Status at October 2019

2

T
(JR)

Information Governance, General Data 
Protection Regulations
To check that actions agreed have been 
effectively implemented and are now 
embedded into the day to day operation of the 
service.

No Planned for January to March 
2020.

Managing Service Delivery Risks

Pride and Joy
By 2050 Southenders are fiercely proud of and go out of their way 

to champion what our city has to offer.

PL
(NH)

Local Transport Capital Block Funding - 
Flood Resilience
To certify, in all significant respects, that the 
conditions attached to the grant have been 
complied with.

Yes Completed September 2019.

PL
(NH)

National Productivity Investment Fund – 
Town Centre Redevelopment Improvement 
Project
To certify, in all significant respects, that the 
conditions attached to the grant have been 
complied with.

Yes Completed September 2019.

Implementing Action Plans

No work required

Safe and Well
By 2050 people in Southend-on-Sea feel safe in all aspects of their lives

and are well enough to live fulfilling lives

PE
(BM)

Children Centres Contract Management 
(2018/19)
To assess whether the contract is being 
effectively managed to ensure the planned 
outcomes for children and families are being 
delivered in compliance with the specified 
performance and/or quality standards, at the 
correct price.

No Completed July 2019.

156



Appendix 1: Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

Dept & 
(Lead)

Service Activity Fraud 
risk 

Status at October 2019

3

PE
(GH)

Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
To assess the robustness of arrangements for 
quickly and effectively supporting people facing 
homelessness to prevent this from happening 
and where it does that this is brief and non-
recurrent.

Yes Work in progress.

PE
(JOL)

Independent Reviewing Officers
To assess the effectiveness of Independent 
Reviewing Officers in ensuring children’s 
needs are met and their outcomes improved 
through the support and services that they 
receive, enabling them to reach their potential.

No Work in progress. 
Internal Audit working with 
Children’s Services to agree 
an overall action plan as the 
findings of an independent 
review also emerge. 

PE
(JL)

Commissioning of a New Service
To assess whether commissioning decisions 
were evidence based through clear and 
concise commissioning proposals, in order to 
meet the needs and outcomes required.

Yes Initial planning and scoping of 
the work underway.

PE
(JL)

Outcome Realisation of a Commissioned 
Service
To assess whether the delivery of a 
commissioned service is being effectively 
managed to ensure the planned outcomes and 
/ or benefits for residents anticipated by the 
commissioning process are delivered.

Yes Initial planning and scoping of 
the work underway.

PE
(GH)

Private Sector Housing
To assess the effectiveness of the Private 
Sector Housing offer in regeneration of the 
housing market to ensure inclusive, healthy 
and safe places to live.

Yes Planned January to March 2020.

PE
(JOL)

In House Foster Carers
To assess the effectiveness of arrangements 
to recruit and retain in-house Foster Carers, 
including the ongoing training and support 
provided to them to ensure local, stable foster 
placements for children.

Yes Planned October to December 
2019.

157



Appendix 1: Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

Dept & 
(Lead)

Service Activity Fraud 
risk 

Status at October 2019

4

PL
(CR)

Environmental Health
To assess whether there are robust 
arrangements in place to ensure concerns and 
referrals received are properly and effectively 
dealt with and statutory responsibilities 
discharged to protect and improve the 
wellbeing of residents.

New addition to the Audit Plan 
from the risk Watch list (see 
Appendix 2a) as in house 
resource increased.
Initial planning and scoping of 
work underway.

PE
(SB)

Depravation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS)
To assess the robustness of arrangements 
which ensure when a person is deprived of 
liberty, is necessary and in their best interests.

New addition to the Audit Plan 
from the risk Watch list (see 
Appendix 2a) as in house 
resource increased.
Planned for January to March 
2020.

PE
(SB)

Adult Social Care Financial Assessments
To assess the robustness of the process that 
determines eligibility for financial support 
towards care needs to ensure it is accurate, 
transparent and accessible.

Yes Terms of reference prepared.

PE
(MB / 
JOL)

Data Quality – Children’s Services
To assess the robustness of arrangements to 
confirm that data entered into the care 
management system (LCS) by social care 
staff, which is then used to produce 
performance indicators for senior 
management, is reliable. 

No Terms of reference prepared.

PL
(PG)

Building a Safer Future
To assess the Building Control team’s 
preparedness for implementing the changes to 
Building Regulations and Fire Safety 
emanating from the Hackitt Enquiry published 
in December 2018.

No Planned January to March 2020.

PE
(JOL)

Early Help and Family Support Quality 
Assurance Framework
To assess the effectiveness of the Assurance 
Framework in supporting the Edge of Care 
Team to ensure that the right decisions are 
made to meet children’s needs and keep them 
safe. 

No Planned October to December 
2019.
Under review as Children 
Services are considering the 
overall extent of the quality 
assurance framework. 

158



Appendix 1: Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

Dept & 
(Lead)

Service Activity Fraud 
risk 

Status at October 2019

5

PE
(GH)

Disabled Facilities Grant
To certify that, in all significant respects, the 
conditions attached to the grant have been 
complied with.

Yes Completed September 2019.

PE
(JOL)

Troubled Families
To certify that, in all significant respects, the 
conditions attached to the grant have been 
complied with.

Yes Report on the July to 
September 2019 submissions 
completed September 2019.

Implementing Action Plans

PL
(PG)

Building Control
To check that actions agreed have been 
effectively implemented and are now 
embedded into the day to day operation of the 
service.

Yes Draft report being discussed 
with the client.

PE
(JOL)

Management Response to Quality 
Assurance Audits (2018-19)
To assess whether the actions agreed in the 
original audit dated July 2018 have been 
implemented and are now effectively 
embedded into the day-to-day operation of the 
service.

No Completed October 2019.

PE
(JOL)

Social Care Payments to Individuals and 
Providers – Children (2018-19)
To assess the robustness of the arrangements 
identified in the previous memo issued in June 
2018, in ensuring that accurate and timely 
social care payments are made to individuals 
and providers.

Yes Completed October 2019.

Active and Involved
By 2050 we have a thriving, active and involved community

that feel invested in our city

Implementing Action Plans

PL
(PG)

South Essex Active Travel (SEAT) 
Governance Arrangements
To check that actions agreed have been 
effectively implemented and are now 
embedded into the day to day operation of the 
service.

Yes Work in progress.

159



Appendix 1: Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

Dept & 
(Lead)

Service Activity Fraud 
risk 

Status at October 2019

6

Opportunity and Prosperity
By 2050 Southend-on-Sea is a successful city and we share our prosperity

amongst all of our people

T
(JR)

Hayes Contract Management
To assess whether there are robust 
arrangements in place to ensure that the 
contract is delivering the planned outcomes 
and / or benefits in compliance with the 
specified performance and quality standards, 
at the correct cost.

Yes Planned January to March 2020.

PL
(PG)

Parking Enforcement Income Collection
To assess the effectiveness of arrangements 
for the timely collection of this income in line 
with the expectations set out in the Corporate 
Debt Policy (November 2017).

Yes Planned January to March 2020.

PL
(PG)

Rechargeable Works
To assess the effectiveness of arrangements 
for recharging third parties for the cost of 
making good accidental damage to Council 
assets.

Yes Initial planning and scoping of 
the work underway.

Implementing Action Plans

No work required

 Connected and Smart
By 2050 people can easily get in, out and around our borough and we have

a world class digital infrastructure

PL 
(ST)

IT Audit – Focus TBD
The focus of these audits will be determined 
following the IT Risk Assessment work starting 
in October 2019 (see Managing the Business 
above). 

Yes

PL 
(ST)

IT Audit – Focus TBD
The focus of these audits will be determined 
following the IT Risk Assessment work starting 
in October 2019 (see Managing the Business 
above).

Yes

Timings to be determined after 
the IT Risk Assessment work 
above (Managing the Business).

160



Appendix 1: Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

Dept & 
(Lead)

Service Activity Fraud 
risk 

Status at October 2019

7

PL
(PG)

Local Transport Capital Block Funding - 
Highways Maintenance
To certify that, in all significant respects, the 
conditions attached to the grant have been 
complied with.

Yes Completed September 2019.

PL
(PG)

Pothole Action Fund
To certify that, in all significant respects, the 
conditions attached to the grant have been 
complied with.

Yes Completed September 2019.

Implementing Action Plans

No work required

Key Financial Systems

All Outcomes 

T
(JR)

Payroll (2018/19)
To assess the robustness of arrangements 
which ensure staff are paid the right amount at 
the right time in line with Council policies and 
legislative requirements.

Yes Completed August 2019.

F&R
(JC)

Housing Benefits
To assess whether the key controls effectively 
prevent or detect material financial errors, on a 
timely basis, so that information from the 
system can be relied upon when producing the 
Council’s statement of accounts.

Yes

F&R
(JC)

Council Tax
To assess whether the key controls effectively 
prevent or detect material financial errors, on a 
timely basis, so that information from the 
system can be relied upon when producing the 
Council’s statement of accounts.

Yes

Planned for October to 
December 2019.

F&R
(JC)

Accounts Payable – Batch Input Files (BIF)
To assess the robustness of arrangements to 
ensure that these payment files are accurate 
and secure.

Yes Planned for January to March 
2020.

161



Appendix 1: Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

Dept & 
(Lead)

Service Activity Fraud 
risk 

Status at October 2019

8

F&R
(JC)

Income Management System
To assess the robustness of the new system to 
ensure that all income is accounted for in an 
accurate, secure and timely manner.

Yes Finalising resource for this 
work.

PE
(SB)

Social Care Debt Collection
To assess the effectiveness of arrangements 
for the timely collection of this income in line 
with the expectations set out in the Corporate 
Debt Policy (November 2017).

Yes Terms of reference being 
drawn up.

Implementing Action Plans

T
(JR)

Payroll
To check that actions agreed have been 
effectively implemented and are now 
embedded into the day to day operation of the 
service.

Yes New addition to the Audit Plan 
from the risk Watch list (see 
Appendix 2a) as in house 
resource increased.
Planned January to March 2020.

Advice and Support

All Outcomes 

PL
(AL)

Cyber Security
To provide support and challenge over the 
robustness of the arrangements for 
implementing the improvement actions 
identified by the Local Government 
Association’s ‘stock take’ of resilience 
arrangements against cyber–attacks.

Yes Timing to be aligned to the 
council’s internal reporting 
arrangements. 

All Transforming Together & Southend 2050

To provide support and challenge to the 
organisation as these continue to develop.

No No work this quarter.

All Information Asset Register Group

To provide support and challenge to the group 
as the Information Asset Register continues to 
develop.

No No work this quarter.

162



Appendix 1: Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

Dept & 
(Lead)

Service Activity Fraud 
risk 

Status at October 2019

9

GGG1 Subject Access Requests Children’s 
Services

To provide support and challenge around the 
robustness of arrangements for responding to 
these requests in the required time frames.

(Working with the Transformation Service’s 
Service Design Team)   

No New.
Extent of the work and 
resourcing required being 
determined.

Pride and Joy
By 2050 Southenders are fiercely proud of, and go out of their way, 

to champion what our city has to offer.

No work planned.

Safe and Well
By 2050 people in Southend-on-Sea feel safe in all aspects of their lives

and are well enough to live fulfilling lives

PL
(AL)

Fire Safety
To provide support and challenge to the 
working group to ensure that fire safety 
arrangements are appropriate and effectively 
managed to make buildings safe and feel safe, 
now and in the future.

Yes Work in progress.

Active and Involved
By 2050 we have a thriving, active and involved community

that feel invested in our city

No work planned.

1 Good Governance Group
163



Appendix 1: Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

Dept & 
(Lead)

Service Activity Fraud 
risk 

Status at October 2019

10

Opportunity and Prosperity
By 2050 Southend-on-Sea is a successful city and we share our prosperity

amongst all of our people

PL
(EC)

Better Queensway Joint Venture
To provide support and challenge as the 
organisation develops and implements 
governance arrangements to monitor the 
delivery of the programme through the Joint 
Venture Limited Liability Partnership.

Yes Risk Workshop on 13 
November 2019 to pilot new 
risk management 
arrangements (see Risk 
Management Strategy above 
under Managing the 
Business).

All Corporate Establishment
To provide support and challenge over the 
development of a corporate establishment, with 
the purpose of ensuring a complete and 
accurate personnel establishment list within 
Agresso and realisation of associated benefits.

Yes Timing to be determined once 
the project timeline has been 
agreed.

PE / 
F&R
(BM / 
JC)

Use of the Basic Need Capital Grant for 
Schools
To support the Council in determining its role 
and responsibilities in ensuring value for 
money for the provision of increased pupil 
places. 

Yes Completed April 2019. 

Connected and Smart
By 2050 people can easily get in, out and around our borough and we have

a world class digital infrastructure

PL
(PG)

Highways Improvement Plan

To provide support and challenge over the 
robustness of the arrangements for 
implementing the agreed improvement actions 
and for measuring the positive impact of the 
actions.

No Feedback provided covering 
the clarity of ownership and 
agreed target dates for 
actions detailed in the 
Improvement Plan.  

164



Appendix 1: Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

Dept & 
(Lead)

Service Activity Fraud 
risk 

Status at October 2019

11

Managing Service Delivery 

Delivering the internal audit service involves:

 audit planning and resourcing

 managing Audit Plan delivery which includes overseeing contractor work 

 reporting to senior management and the Audit Committee. 

Implementing the outstanding actions arising from the external quality assessment undertaken by 
the Institute of Internal Auditors undertaken in October 2017.

165



Appendix 2a: Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

12

Risk Watch List 

PE The effectiveness of the Children’s Services Quality Assurance and Practice Framework

PE Adherence to terms and conditions of the Early Years grant funding (advice and support 
2019/20)

PE Delivery of outcomes from the block contract with Southend Care

PE Monitoring the delivery of outcomes for older people placed in residential care 

PE Implementation of the Special Education Needs Inspection Action Plan

PE Essex Partnership University NHS Foundation Trust S75 Agreement

F&R Counter Fraud and Investigations delivery against the Service Level Agreement with Thurrock 
Council (New alternative arrangements now being developed)

PL Management of the ICT Liquid Logic and / or Logicalis contract

PE Delivery of outcomes from the Locality delivery model in Adult Social Care

PL Environmental Health (Now added to the 2019/20 Audit Plan)

T Payroll revisited (Now added to the 2019/20 Audit Plan)

PE Vibrance contract management revisited

T Governance architecture for service delivery

F&R Implementation of the automated P2P new supplier process (advice and support 2019/20)

PE Depravation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) (Now added to the 2019/20 Audit Plan)

These are other potential audits that may be considered for inclusion in the Audit Plan during the year 
should resources permit.

166



Appendix 2a: Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

13

Audit Activities Resource allocation

Managing the Business 3%

Managing Service Delivery Risks 42%

Key Financial Systems 13%

Grant Claims 6%

Advice and Support 7%

Follow Ups 8%

Contingency 11%

Managing Delivery of the Audit Plan 10%

Total 100%

Total Council Audit Plan Days 583

The days required to revisit and retest action plans from previous reports are      
included under each heading.
The Total Council Audit Plan Days reflects the higher cost of buying in external 
contractors to cover internal vacancies.    

Analysis Over Departments

All Cross Cutting 4%

F&R Finance and Resources Service 11%

L&D Legal and Democratic Services 3%

T Transformation Service 4%

PE People 32%

PL Place 25%

All Contingency 11%

All Managing Delivery of the Audit Plan 10%

Total 100%

167



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2A: Assurance and Themes
Assurance

1

MinimalPartialSatisfactoryHigh

Contract Management of Children’s Centres (2018/19)

Objective

To assess whether the contract is being effectively managed to ensure the planned 
outcomes for children and families are being delivered in compliance with the 
specified performance and / or quality standards, at the correct price

Themes

The contract for management of the Children’s Centres commenced on 1 October 
2016. From the outset, the Council recognised that the service provider’s ability to 
achieve the Key Performance Indicators within the contract was affected by a 
requirement to TUPE existing staff and restructure the service, while containing the 
costs within the Council’s maximum budget envelope. It was also affected by a 
number of the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), which required partnership 
working with other organisations.
To address this, the Council proposed changes to the contract that led to a formal 
Contract Variation during April 2018. The variation changed the KPIs reducing their 
number and classifying them across three themes Access to Services, Quality of 
Services and Partnership Working.
This classification recognised that the service provider is largely an enabler of 
opportunity in capturing families and children into a wider partnership system of 
working with people/other agencies to improve outcomes.
Since April 2018, the council has put in place two Action Plans to respond to 
concerns over delivery of the KPIs. The first concentrates on the number of children 
living in deprivation areas who are attending a children’s centre, and the second on 
maximising the use of the buildings. The second action plan recognises that many of 
the KPIs cannot be delivered to their maximum potential without the Children’s 
Centres being opened and occupied in pursuit of meaningful activity related to 
delivering them. It is reported that there is currently a particular focus on three 
children centres through ‘test and learn’ initiatives with partners, to start the change 
to improve service delivery and outcomes.  
Since April 2018, progress on meeting the actions has been robustly managed and 
monitored at a senior level by the Director of Learning in accordance with 
recommended practices, to maximise what can be achieved. The contract is also 
monitored by the Success For All Group and the Department for People’s Major 
Projects Group.
The Deputy Chief Executive (People) has authorised additional expenditure up to the 
Council’s original budget envelope to mitigate the early effect of a reduced service, 
as resources were consumed in restructuring costs.
Contractual payments to date have been held within the budget envelope.
Going forward there is recognition that as the delivery of this service approaches the 
end of the current contractual arrangement,  there will be significant opportunities  to 
re-examine how outcomes can best be achieved by applying the principles laid out in 

169



Appendix 2A: Assurance and Themes
Assurance

2

MinimalPartialSatisfactoryHigh

the council’s Commissioning Framework. There is a particular acknowledgement that 
effective commissioning requires collaboration with partners and other key 
Stakeholders.
Better defining realistic outcomes and associated performance measures for children 
and families will ensure the contractual behaviour drives performance for contracted 
services, if that is the service delivery model selected, necessary to achieve the 
council’s 2050 ambition and five-year road map.

Number of actions agreed:  3

170



Appendix 2B: Audit Assurances and Themes

Assurance

1

MinimalPartialSatisfactoryHigh

Payroll 

Objective

To assess the robustness of arrangements which ensure staff are paid the correct 
amount at the right time in line with Southend on Sea Borough Council’s (the 
Council) policies and legislative requirements.

Summary 

Annual uplifts of salary scales, tax codes and national insurance bands within 
Business World are timely, with two officers involved in each process to ensure they 
are accurate. Business World permissions are reviewed on an annual basis to 
ensure access to Payroll and HR functions are appropriately restricted.
The payroll processing guide provides direction to staff on running reports ahead of 
the payroll being processed. Work is underway to extend the guidance to ensure all 
processes are covered and to ensure expectations of the checks needed are clear.
The process for inputting pay forms (for starters, leavers and amendments), overtime 
outside of self-serve, allowances and additional run payments onto Business World 
is manual and requires:

 one officer signing the supporting evidence to confirm they have input the 
information onto Business World

 a second officer independently reviewing the input and signing the supporting 
evidence to confirm it is accurate.

A number of instances were identified where the input had not been reviewed by the 
second Officer. Extending the monthly spot check of pay forms currently undertaken 
to include a selection of the manually input overtime, allowances and additional run 
transactions will help to:

 ensure they are processed correctly and supported by appropriate evidence

 identify those that have not followed the correct review and authorisation process

 deter inappropriate payments being input on the system.
Once the payroll is prepared and in proposal, a deviance report is run to identify all 
individual payments that are +/- 30% or more compared to the previous month. Spot-
checking those below the 30% threshold will help deter fraudulent payments made in 
a way to circumvent this check. As it is not possible to physically stop changes to the 
payroll while it is being processed, a second deviance report is run to identify any 
additional transactions during ‘lockdown’. This check is being extended to confirm 
the value of payments is also unchanged.
Two Officers are involved in uploading the payment file for the BACS run. They 
check the file to ensure the value is as expected and therefore that payment is 
correct.

171



Appendix 2B: Audit Assurances and Themes

Assurance

2

MinimalPartialSatisfactoryHigh

After the payroll has been run, a ‘net pay’ check compares the second deviance 
report to actual pay to confirm no further changes were made.
A long term, wider piece of work is underway to build an ‘establishment hierarchy’ 
into Business World, enabling employees to be allocated to posts within the set 
organisational structure. This should:

 ensure an accurate record of staff is maintained and give greater control over 
staff resources and appropriateness of payments

 allow for a more automated payroll process, especially for input and review of 
information into Business World.

Number of actions agreed: 17

Social Care Payments to Individuals and Providers – Children 
(Revisited)

Objective

To assess the robustness of the arrangements identified in the previous memo 
issued in June 2018, in ensuring that accurate and timely social care payments are 
made to individuals and providers.

Summary

Work is underway to move the final payment streams being made via the Children’s 
Payment Database onto the Liquid Logic (LCS) and ContrOCC1 systems where 
segregation of duties between requests, authorisation and payment can be enforced. 
Interim arrangements are being introduced to ensure the ongoing accuracy of 
payments generated via the Children’s Payment Database, including increased 
review of:

 proposed payments within the Department for People’s Finance Team 

 actual payments made compared to original requests by the social care service 
areas.

Increased review of payments is also being introduced by the Foster Care team to 
confirm the ongoing accuracy of foster care fees which are actioned directly via the 
finance module (ContrOCC) by the Department for People’s Finance Team. Again, 
the longer term solution, which is also part of the wider piece of work identified 
above, is to have the end to end process on LCS and ContrOCC, to match the 
arrangements in place for paying foster care allowances and expenses. As such, the 
process will automate the workflow for approval and reduce manual intervention. 

1 Finance module that interfaces with LCS to facilitate payments

172



Appendix 2B: Audit Assurances and Themes

Assurance

3

MinimalPartialSatisfactoryHigh

A regular review of system permissions is to be introduced to ensure access to LCS 
and ContrOCC by individual officers:

 remains appropriate to current roles

 is restricted to only one system wherever possible (the exception being read only 
access). Where this is not possible, appropriate monitoring of permission use is 
to be introduced

 does not allow for one individual to perform any process end-to-end e.g. on 
ContrOCC, authorise payments and undertake Manual Adjustments.

The process for setting up financial approval limits on LCS and ContrOCC is well 
designed and aligns to the Council’s Scheme of Delegation and the approach used 
for the Council’s key financial system Business World. A report is being designed to 
notify all movers / leavers actioned through MyICT requests to the Department for 
People’s Finance Team to ensure approval limits can be updated / removed as 
required.
Not all items requiring financial approval are automatically routed on LCS to the 
appropriate budget holder, instead being routed to the line manager. This is a known 
glitch of the LCS system and line managers are expected to identify and re-route 
financial approvals beyond their corporate delegated approval limits to the budget 
holder. A report has been developed to identify those that have not been re-routed 
and resulted in line managers authorising beyond their designated approval limits. 
Regular review of this by the Heads of Service and the Director of Children’s 
Services will allow for any inappropriate authorisations to be identified and 
addressed as necessary.
Developing a central record of care contributions agreed by Health and Education 
partners will:

 ensure all agreed contributions are known

 allow for uplifts in placement costs to be reflected in reclaims

 give added assurance that all agreed contributions are being reclaimed.

173



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2C: Other Audits and Grant Claims 

1

Objective

To confirm that grant allocations for 2018/19 received from the Department for 
Transport and the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government have 
been spent in accordance with the relevant scheme's terms and conditions.

Disabled Facilities Capital Grant Determination (DFG)

Purpose of funding

To support those in non-council properties with required adaptations to their homes 
based on their medical needs.  Types of works undertaken include installations of:

 level access showers

 ramped access to properties

 stair lifts or through-floor lifts.

Conclusion

It was confirmed that spend was compliant in that: 

 it fell within the definition of "capital" for accounting purposes

 grant monies had been transferred into the local Better Care Fund pooled budget, 
under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006.

In addition, work was undertaken to verify that all cases were supported by:

 an assessment of need and recommendation of adaptation works required, 
undertaken by an Occupational Therapist

 suitable means testing to ensure eligibility to the DFG scheme, where required

 a signed agreement from surveyors and clients that works had been completed 
as per the plans, and to a suitable standard.

Opinion:  Unqualified 

175



Appendix 2C: Other Audits and Grant Claims 

2

Highways Maintenance Challenge Fund

Purpose of funding

Funding was provided to assist with highway flood reduction and resilience.

Conclusion

It was confirmed that spend was compliant in that: 

 it fell within the definition of "capital" for accounting purposes

 work undertaken related to highway flood reduction and resilience in the borough.

Opinion:  Unqualified 

National Productivity Investment Fund

Purpose of funding

Funding was provided to support the town centre redevelopment improvement 
project.

Conclusion
It was confirmed that spend was compliant in that: 

 it fell within the definition of "capital" for accounting purposes

 work undertaken related to town centre redevelopment.

Opinion:  Unqualified 

176



Appendix 2C: Other Audits and Grant Claims 

3

Local Transport Capital Block Fund  

Purpose of funding

To assist in delivering transport improvement schemes, which can include:

 road markings and re-surfacing

 upgrades to traffic signal junctions, zebra and puffin crossings

 bridge strengthening

 installation / replacement of sign lights and street lights

 upgrades to electronic bus information screens

 pothole repairs.

Conclusion

It was confirmed that spend was compliant in that it fell within the definition of 
"capital" for accounting purposes.
Some issues were identified that did not impact on the ability to confirm the grant 
expenditure, but required attention from the service area. Evidence that works had 
been completed, such as records of site visits or photos showing works completed, 
were not always available. Work was undertaken by engineers to re-visit works and 
verify that they had been completed in line with the invoices paid.

Opinion:  Unqualified 

Troubled Families Programme, Payments by Results Scheme Grant

Objective

To assess compliance with the terms and conditions of the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government’s (MHCLG) Financial Framework for making 
Payment by Result (PBR) claims under the Expanded Troubled Families Programme 
(Phase 2).

Background

The Financial Framework requires that Internal Audit verifies a 10% representative 
sample of PBR claims before they are made to ensure there is supporting evidence 
to confirm families:

 met the required criteria to be considered for entry to the expanded Troubled 
Families Programme

 have achieved either continuous employment or significant and sustained 
progress as defined by the Council’s agreed Outcomes Plan.

Larger sample sizes may be required for smaller claims in order to ensure the audit 
is meaningful.

177



Appendix 2C: Other Audits and Grant Claims 

4

Conclusion

Between July and September, 48 PBR claims were presented for audit prior to 
submission to the MHCLG. 
The Team Manager reviews a minimum of 10% of claims to confirm appropriate 
evidence has been provided.
Of the 48 claims presented, the Team Manager reviewed 10. Internal Audit randomly 
selected six claims for review, which included two checked by the Team Manager.  
For all but one claim, suitable evidence was available to support:

 entry into the programme 

 a claim for either significant and sustained progress, or continuous / subsequent 
employment. 

One claim submitted under the significant and sustained progress outcome was 
withdrawn as whilst the mother had engaged with the Community Mental Health 
Team, evidence was not available to demonstrate her engagement with substance 
misuse agencies for the required number of sessions, or a reduction in her cannabis 
use as required by the Council’s Outcome Plan.
This is only the second case that has been withdrawn since September 2018 which 
demonstrates that the Team Manager’s quality assurance checks are working 
effectively. This has also been confirmed from the findings of the MHCLG’s recent 
spot check process – see below.
Claims Validation ‘Spot Check’ Process
During August, the programme was subject to its second spot check from the 
MHCLG. The MHCLG conducts a validation process to ensure claims are compliant 
with the terms of the programme’s financial framework, including checking evidence 
of eligibility, successful outcomes and whole family working’
The MHCLG concluded there were no invalid claims and confirmed they ‘are 
confident the team are working within the principles of the programme’s financial 
framework’. The MHCLG recognised that the ‘services in Southend-on-Sea work 
hard to support families with complex and high-level needs to make sustainable 
changes in their lives’.

178



Appendix 2D: Follow up audits 

1

Purpose of these audits

To assess whether the actions agreed in the original audit report have been 
implemented and are now effectively embedded into the day-to-day operation of the 
service.

Management Response to Quality Assurance audits

Original Objective

To assess whether senior managements revised arrangements for ensuring prompt 
action is taken to address the improvements required where a children’s social care file 
is assessed as ‘inadequate’ or ‘inadequate critical’, are operating effectively to minimise 
the risk to Children. 

Results

Fully 
implemented

Substantially 
implemented

Partially 
implemented

Not 
implemented

2 1 4 4

Summary

Period No. of Audits No. of Inadequate No. of Repeat 
Inadequate

June 2018 – 
May 2019

219 8
3.7%

0
0%

The stages for improving practice detailed within the ‘Departmental Response to Audits’ 
process (the process) remain well designed. If consistently applied the process aims to 
ensure the robustness of action taken to improve social work practice for children 
whose case files are assessed as inadequate.
Since the original audit, the process has been updated to reflect areas where there is 
some flexibility to move away from the process e.g. where the criteria for a full caseload 
review of a social worker’s caseload has been met but deemed not to be required.
Further updates are required to:

 ensure cover arrangements are followed when the Practice Lead is out of the office 
and the day three meeting is going to be missed

 make clear the requirements of managers to proactively monitor cases found to be 
inadequate to ensure remedial actions are happening consistently and are effective.

A monitoring spreadsheet has been developed and is well designed to give adequate 
oversight of the key stages of the process and whether they are being met. Introducing 
dedicated administrative support to regularly review the spreadsheet against the Case 
Management System Liquid Logic (LCS) will help ensure any deviation from, or delay in 
the process will be highlighted quickly and can be escalated as necessary.

179



Appendix 2D: Follow up audits 

2

The improvement process remains focused on the practice of the Social Workers 
responsible for cases. There is opportunity to extend this to other professionals and 
their roles in cases, such as Team Managers and Independent Reviewing Officers.

Outlining how these are addressed, managed and reported (e.g. in a similar way to how 
practice issues relating to Social Workers are addressed through the Whole Caseload 
Review process) will help to improve practice across the department where required.

Until November 2018 there was monthly reporting to the Director of Children’s Services 
on the results of Quality Assurance audits but these are on hold while the role of the 
new Practice Unit is developed. These reports provided:

 overall file gradings following new audits and re-audits of previously inadequate 
cases

 a breakdown of grading’s against various audit themes, such as ‘voice of the child’.
There is limited information about the process reported within these, with the exception 
of November’s report where more information was given on:

 manager performance in responding to monitoring and reviewing plans in line with 
the process (i.e. Service Manager review within 10 days) and the timeliness of 
response to the case found to be inadequate in that month

 work being undertaken to improve the notification process, including engagement 
with Managers to better understand what they need to support them effectively 
monitor the implementation of improvement plans.

Reintroducing consistent reporting inclusive of feedback on adherence to the 
improvement process will allow the Director of Children’s Services to:

 get assurance the process is working effectively and consistently

 challenge where the agreed process has not been followed.

Due to the lower number of inadequate cases, this will be reported formally on a 
quarterly basis. The Head of Children’s Services Transformation will provide updates on 
the progress of individual cases to the Director of Children’s Services as required.

180



Appendix 3: Stakeholder Surveys, Compliance with Professional Standards

Setting up and planning the audit (PSIAS 1200 / 2200)

1 Did we show a good level of knowledge and understanding of your service 
when discussing the potential scope and objective to be covered by the 
audit before fieldwork took place?

100%

Performing the audit (PSIAS 2300)

2 Did we work effectively with you when doing the audit to minimise the 
impact on your service?

100%

3 Were we able to talk knowledgeably with you about information provided to 
us and queries we had during the audit?

93%

Communicating results (PSIAS 2400) and Improving governance, risk management 
and control processes (PSIAS 2100)

4 Did we keep you informed of the progress of the audit and issues arising 
from the work in timely manner?

92%

5 Did we effectively explain to you where we felt action was required to 
improve your arrangements and why?

100%

6 Was the report fair and reflective of the work done by audit and the issues 
found as discussed with you?

93%

Independence and Objectivity (PSIAS 1100)

7 Did we provide relevant evidence to back up our findings if required? 100%

8 At the end of the audit, did you understand the rationale for the overall 
opinion given?

100%

Managing the Internal Audit Activity (PSIAS 2000)

9 Do you think internal audit adds value to the Council? 100%

181



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Issue 29 

CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit 

External Audit Arrangements for English Local Government Bodies 

Regular Briefing on Current Issues 

 

 

Audit Committee Update 
Helping Audit Committees to Be Effective 

 
 

 

 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum 

 

August 2019 

183

8



1 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

 

Introduction  

Dear audit committee member, 

This is the 29th issue of Audit Committee Update. Our main focus in this issue is the new 

CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Public Service Organisations. 

The Statement was published in April and helps audit committee members to understand 

what they should expect from the head of internal audit. It also sets out the overview and 

support that the audit committee should provide to that role. It is therefore a key document 

in understanding the role that internal audit should be playing within the organisation. 

The remainder of this issue focuses on keeping you up to date with new developments. 

There are some important developments that will impact on the work of audit committees, 

particularly in relation to local audit in England. Our briefing highlights the key reports and 

work in progress, and we will keep you updated in future issues.  

Overall, I hope that you find this issue interesting, informative and helpful in your work on 

the committee. 

Best wishes 

Diana Melville 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum  

 

Sharing this Document  

Audit Committee Update is provided to subscribers of the Better Governance Forum for use 

within their organisations. Please feel free to circulate it widely to your organisation’s audit 

committee members and colleagues. It can also be placed on an intranet. It should not be 

shared with audit committee members of organisations that do not subscribe to the Better 

Governance Forum or disseminated more widely without CIPFA’s permission. 

Audit Committee Update is covered by CIPFA’s copyright and so should not be published on 

the internet without CIPFA’s permission. This includes the public agendas of audit 

committees. 

 

Receive our Briefings Directly 

This briefing will be sent to contacts of organisations that subscribe to the CIPFA Better 

Governance Forum, with a request that it be sent to all audit committee members. 

If you have an organisational email address (for example jsmith@mycouncil.gov.uk) then 

you will also be able to register on our website and download any of our guides and 

briefings directly. To register now, please visit www.cipfa.org/Register. To receive mailings 

from the Better Governance Forum you will need to opt-in.  See My Preferences under ‘My 

CIPFA’ on the website one you have logged in. 

  

184

mailto:jsmith@mycouncil.gov.uk
http://www.cipfa.org/Register


2 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Previous Issues of Audit Committee Update 

You can download all the previous issues from the CIPFA Better Governance Forum website. 

Click on the links below to find what you need. 

Principal Content Link 

Issues from 2010 and 2011– the content in these issues has been replaced by more 

recent issues. 

Issues from 2012 

Assurance Planning, Risk Outlook for 2012, Government Response to 

the Future of Local Audit Consultation 

Issue 7 

Commissioning, Procurement and Contracting Risks Issue 8 

Reviewing Assurance over Value for Money Issue 9 

Issues from 2013 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Updates to Guidance on 

Annual Governance Statements 

Issue 10 

Local Audit and Accountability Bill, the Implications for Audit 

Committees, Update of CIPFA’s Guidance on Audit Committees 

Issue 11 

Reviewing Internal Audit Quality, New CIPFA Publication, Audit 

Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police, Regular 

Briefing on Current Issues 

Issue 12 

Issues from 2014 

Reviewing the Audit Plan, Update on the Local Audit and Accountability 

Act, Briefing on Topical Governance Issues 

Issue 13 

Issues 14 and 15 – the content in these issues has been replaced by more recent issues.  

Issues from 2015 

What Makes a Good Audit Committee Chair? Governance Developments 

in 2015 

Issue 16 

The Audit Committee Role in Reviewing the Financial Statements, 

Regular Briefing on Current Developments 

Issue 17 

Self-assessment and Improving Effectiveness, Appointment and 

Procurement of External Auditors, Regular Briefing on Current Issues 

Issue 18 

Issues from 2016 

Good Governance in Local Government – 2016 Framework, Appointing 

Local Auditors, Regular Briefing on Current Issues 

Issue 19 

CIPFA Survey on Audit Committees 2016, Regular Briefing on Current 

Issues 

Issue 20 

The Audit Committee and Internal Audit Quality, Briefing on Topical 

Issues 

Issue 21 

Issues from 2017 

Developing an Effective Annual Governance Statement, Regular Briefing 

on Current Developments, Audit Committee Training 

Issue 22 

2017 edition of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, Risks and 

Opportunities from Brexit, Recent Developments and Resources 

Issue 23 

 

185

http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-7
http://www.cipfa.org/Services/Networks/Better-Governance-Forum/Corporate-Governance-Documentation/Audit-Committee-Update-Issue-8
http://www.cipfa.org/Services/Networks/Better-Governance-Forum/Corporate-Governance-Documentation/Audit-committee-update
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-10
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-11
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-12
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-13
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-16
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-17
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-18
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-19
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-20
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-21
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-22
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/audit-committee-update/audit-committee-update-issue-23


3 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

 

Issues from 2018 

The Audit Committee Role in Risk Management, Regular Briefing on 

Current Developments 

Issue 24 

Developing an Effective Annual Governance Statement 

 

Issue 25 

CIPFA Position Statement on Audit Committees in Local Authorities 

and Police 2018 

Issue 26 

Issues from 2019 

Focus on Local Audit  

National Audit Office Report: Local Authority Governance 

 

Issue 27 

The Audit Committee Role in Counter Fraud Issue 28 

 

 

Workshops and Training for Audit Committee Members in 
2019/20 from CIPFA 

Introduction to the knowledge and skills of the audit committee 

This training course will provide more in-depth knowledge of the core areas of an audit 

committee’s functions, including risk management, assurance planning and improving the 

effectiveness of the committee. 

 18 September, London 

 19 September, Leeds 

 17 October, Birmingham 

Development day for police audit committees 

These events are suitable for members of the joint audit committees supporting police and 

crime commissioners (PCCs) and chief constables. These events are run in conjunction with 

CIPFA’s Police Network. 

 21 November, York 

 28 November, London 

Development day for local government audit committees  

This workshop is suitable for audit committee members or those working with the audit 

committee in local government. It will cover an update on new developments and guidance 

relevant to the audit committee role. In addition, it will feature key topics for the audit 

committee agenda. 

 13 November, London 
 4 December, Birmingham  

Other dates in late 2019 or early 2020 will be announced later in the year.  

 

 

The above events can all be accessed using prepaid places for the CIPFA Better Governance 

Forum. CIPFA events information and dates will be available on the website in due course. 

 

CIPFA events information and dates are available on the website: www.cipfa.org/Events. 

186

https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/audit-committee-update/audit-committee-update-issue-24
https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/audit-committee-update/audit-committee-update-issue-25
https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/audit-committee-update/audit-committee-update-issue-26
https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/audit-committee-update/audit-committee-update-issue-27
https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/audit-committee-update/audit-committee-update-issue-28
https://www.cipfa.org/training/i/introduction-to-the-knowledge-and-skills-of-the-audit-committee-20190918-london
https://www.cipfa.org/training/i/introduction-to-the-knowledge-and-skills-of-the-audit-committee-20190919-leeds
https://www.cipfa.org/training/i/introduction-to-the-knowledge-and-skills-of-the-audit-committee-20190919-midlands
http://www.cipfa.org/events
http://www.cipfa.org/Events


4 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

In-house training and facilitation 

In-house audit committee training and guidance tailored to your needs is available. Options 

include: 

• key roles and responsibilities of the committee 

• effective chairing and support for the committee 

• working with internal and external auditors 

• public sector internal audit standards 

• corporate governance 

• strategic risk management 

• value for money 

• fraud risks and counter fraud arrangements 

• reviewing the financial statements 

• assurance arrangements 

• improving impact and effectiveness. 

For further details contact diana.melville@cipfa.org or visit the CIPFA website for further 

details on the support we have available for audit committees. 

  

187

mailto:diana.melville@cipfa.org
https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees


5 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit – what 

does the audit committee need to know? 

The CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Public Service 

Organisations was published in April 2019. It is aimed at audit committees and leadership 

teams, helping them to understand the role of the head of internal audit and the 

organisational arrangements that should be in place to provide effective support to the role. 

The audit committee plays a key role in relation to internal audit, providing oversight of the 

arrangements for the service and holding it to account for its delivery of the audit plan. It 

also plays a vital role in providing high-level support and helping to ensure that its reports 

and recommendations are considered and addressed by managers. A talented head of 

internal audit can do a very good job in organising his or her team and ensuring 

professional internal audit standards are met, but unless there is the right level of 

engagement with the audit committee and leadership team the impact and effectiveness of 

internal audit is likely to be undermined. Therefore, it is important that the audit committee 

understands its role and plays it effectively. 

Structure of the Statement 

The Statement has five principles that should be applicable to any public sector 

organisation. For each principle the organisational arrangements are identified along with 

the characteristics of the role and of the individual. The principles are aligned to the 

professional standards for internal audit: the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

(PSIAS). 

The head of internal audit in a public service organisation plays a critical role in 

delivering the organisation’s strategic objectives by: 

1. objectively assessing the adequacy and 

effectiveness of governance and 

management of risks, giving an evidence-

based opinion on all aspects of governance, 

risk management and internal control 

 

2. championing best practice in governance 

and commenting on responses to emerging 

risks and proposed developments. 

To perform this role the head of internal 

audit must: 

3. be a senior manager with regular and open 

engagement across the organisation, 

particularly with the leadership team and 

the audit committee 

 

4. lead and direct an internal audit service that 

is resourced appropriately, sufficiently and 

effectively 

 

5. be professionally qualified and suitably 

experienced. 

 

 

 

 

 

188

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-head-of-internal-audit
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-head-of-internal-audit


6 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Key steps for the audit committee member 

CIPFA recommends that audit committee members should read the Statement, as it helps 

them to understand more about the role and responsibilities of the head of internal audit. Of 

particular interest to the audit committee member will be the following areas: 

 Clear designation of who holds the position of head of internal audit (Principle 3). 

Sometimes in contracted or shared services this individual may not be a direct 

employee of the organisation, so it is important to be clear where responsibility lies.   

 How the head of internal audit reports to the audit committee (Principle 1). 

 Which member of the leadership team has responsibility for internal audit (Principle 

1). 

 Whether the internal audit charter and plan have been approved by the audit 

committee (Principle 1). 

 Whether the head of internal audit has direct access to the audit committee and 

members of the leadership team (Principle 3). 

 The audit committee terms of reference should include oversight of internal audit 

and monitoring of adherence to professional standards (Principle 3). 

 Whether the head of internal audit has the status, resources, expertise and systems 

needed to perform the role effectively (Principle 4). 

 Ensuring that the audit committee supports the head of internal audit and 

participates in the service’s quality assurance and improvement programme 

(Principle 4). 

 Support for the head of internal audit to maintain professional knowledge and extend 

skills and knowledge (Principle 5). 

If the organisation is recruiting a new head of internal audit then the chair of the audit 

committee may be briefed about the selection process or may participate in the selection. 

The Statement also includes the personal skills and professional standards that the head of 

internal audit is expected to meet, and these may be helpful in supporting the selection 

process. 

Additional guidance 

To accompany the Statement CIPFA has also published a set of case studies demonstrating 

how heads of internal audit are putting the principles of the Statement into practice. The 

examples include supporting the development of the audit committee, reviews of 

governance arrangements and coaching internal audit team members. Leading Internal 

Audit can be downloaded from the CIPFA website and we hope that it will provide further 

support in understanding the role and potential of the head of internal audit. 

Putting the Statement into practice 

The committee can use the Statement when it reviews internal audit agenda items at its 

meetings, for example, an update of the internal audit charter or consideration of the 

annual opinion and report. The Statement can also inform the committee’s review of its own 

terms of reference, preparation of an annual report or self-evaluation. 

 

Diana Melville 

Governance Advisor 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum 

 

 

189

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/leading-internal-audit-in-the-public-sector


7 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

External Audit Arrangements for English Local Government Bodies 

Whilst external arrangements for local government in Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland 

have remained stable over the last ten years, arrangements for English bodies: councils, 

police and fire and rescue organisations, have gone through significant change. And more is 

set to come. 

Minister of State Eric Pickles announced the intention to close the Audit Commission, which 

had overseen external audit arrangements, in 2010. Whilst some immediate changes such 

as the cessation of the Comprehensive Area Assessment and the Use of Resources 

assessments happened straight away, other changes took time to implement. External 

audits performed by the District Audit team of the Audit Commission were outsourced. The 

Local Audit and Accountability Act was passed in 2014. Public Sector Audit Appointments 

was established firstly to oversee the management of the contracts let by the Audit 

Commission. It was then authorised to conduct a procurement of audit services that local 

government bodies could choose to opt into. Over 98% of local bodies did choose to do so.  

Those contracts were let in 2017 to start for the 2018/19 financial year. So only now are the 

first audits being conducted under the devolved system envisaged by the Act.  

The regulation of local auditors also changed under the Act. The Code of Audit Practice, 

which provides the more detailed framework of the scope of the audit, is now led by the 

National Audit Office (NAO). The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) was given a new role in 

relation to audit quality.  

Current issues and challenges 

Timely completion of the audit 

Some organisations are experiencing delays with the completion of their audit because of 

capacity issues within the audit firms. Recent press reports include an article in Local 

Government Chronicle about the impact on 19 councils; but other bodies are likely to be 

affected.  

Satisfaction with the audit process 

The recent report from the National Audit Office, Local Authority Governance included 

concerns from some of the organisations being audited that the audit provides less in-depth 

assurance, particularly around governance and the use of resources, than they would like.  

Another concern expressed is that prices may have been reduced too much and the quality 

of audit has suffered as a result. In the NAO’s survey a quarter of respondents from single 

tier and county councils felt their fees were too low relative to the risk that their authority 

faces. 

Similar comments were made in the consultation on the NAO’s Code of Audit Practice. 

Concerns that audit recommendations do not have the expected impact 

In their report on Local Auditor Reporting, the NAO expressed concerns that adverse auditor 

reports or recommendations were not responded to effectively by the organisations affected 

and that the impact of a qualified conclusion on value for money appeared to be limited. 

Impact of audit issues beyond the public sector 

Auditors in the private sector have also faced criticism. For example the auditors of Carillion 

and Patisserie Valerie are currently under review to ensure that those audits met the 

standards expected. Whilst these issues relate to private sector audits, inevitably any 

concerns about the quality and reliability of audit do have an impact more widely. 

190

https://www.lgcplus.com/finance/revealed-19-face-audit-delay-due-to-ey-staffing-issues-03-06-2019/
https://www.lgcplus.com/finance/revealed-19-face-audit-delay-due-to-ey-staffing-issues-03-06-2019/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-authority-governance-2/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-auditor-reporting-in-england-2018/


8 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Another issue is the competitiveness of the audit market and maintaining auditor 

independence. The independent appointment of auditors in local government has helped the 

sector avoid the accusation that auditors are too close to the organisations they audit. By 

contrast, some major companies have retained the same audit firm for more than a decade. 

Ensuring effective regulatory reporting 

A new role for the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) is to review audit quality in a similar 

way to the audit quality reviews that they undertake on the firms’ corporate client audits. 

Corporate audit committees receive a report from the FRC on the results of their quality 

review of the company’s audit if one is undertaken. A similar approach would be a new 

responsibility for a local government audit committee. 

Recent reviews and recommendations on external audit 

Review of local authority financial reporting and external audit, the Redmond review 

This review, chaired by Sir Tony Redmond, was announced by James Brokenshire in July.  

The review has a broad remit to consider the impact of the changes made by the Local Audit 

and Accountability Act, plus wider issues around public reporting and the transparency of 

financial reporting. The review will consider arrangements within all aspects of local 

government: authorities, police, fire authorities and also smaller authorities. It will not 

consider the audit of health trusts even though the Act also applied to those bodies. 

The terms of reference of the review have been published by the Ministry of Housing, 

Communities and Local Government. Whilst the review as a whole will be of interest to audit 

committees, it is worth noting that the review will consider how effectively local government 

bodies engage with and respond to audit recommendations. This will of course focus on the 

role played by the audit committee. 

The review will involve consultation with a range of stakeholders, including authorities. 

Consultation on the Code of Audit Practice 

Earlier this year the National Audit Office published an issues paper to seek views on how it 

should revise the Code of Audit Practice. The NAO has now published a summary paper 

discussing the responses it received and setting out its next steps. There will be further 

consultation late in the year on the draft of the Code. The latest paper indicates that there 

will be a greater emphasis on the auditor’s assessment of value for money arrangements. 

This is potentially a helpful change that will provide audit committees with greater insight 

and assurance. 

Market study on statutory audit services: initial consultation  

The government recently published proposals on how it intends to implement the 

recommendations made by the Competition and Markets Authority on the audit market. The 

proposals include promoting competition in the audit market through joint audits and 

ensuring operational splits between audit and non-audit work. There are also 

recommendations for greater scrutiny from the regulator over the appointment of auditors 

by the audit committee.  

The firms that conduct local audit will be impacted by these proposals in their wider audit 

work and the proposals could have direct implications for local audit. Further clarity is 

required on this. 

The quality and effectiveness of audit: independent review 

The Department of Business Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) has initiated a review, 

known as the Brydon review, to look at audit scope and reporting across the corporate 

191

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/review-of-local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-terms-of-reference
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/statutory-audit-services-initial-consultation-on-the-competition-and-markets-authority-recommendations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-quality-and-effectiveness-of-audit-independent-review


9 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

sector. It is included here as any recommendations impacting on audit will have some 

influence on those arrangements in other sectors, including the public sector. 

Independent review of the Financial Reporting Council 2018 (Kingman report) 

This report was commissioned by (BEIS) and focused on the role of the FRC. It included 

arrangements for the regulation of local audit. The report recommended that the FRC should 

be replaced with a new body, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority. It also made 

recommendations for a fundamental rethink of local audit arrangements and to bring 

together all regulatory responsibilities for local audit under a single body. 

In his response to the report, the secretary of state said that the recommendations relating 

to the regulation of local audit would be addressed separately. The Redmond review will 

address these aspects within its scope. 

So what does this mean for local government? 

In summary, the future shape of local audit arrangements is fluid. It seems likely that the 

proposals will seek to strengthen and improve the impact of local audit. For local bodies this 

could mean more rigorous scrutiny on key risks to value for money, for example financial 

sustainability or the adequacy of governance arrangements. It is also likely that local bodies 

will be expected to ensure that their arrangements to engage with the auditors and to 

receive and respond to auditor recommendations, including the audit committee, are 

sufficiently robust. 

It is too early to speculate whether there will be changes to the appointment mechanism of 

local auditors. Changes to the current arrangements would require primary legislation and 

so could not happen quickly.  

Steps for audit committees to take now 

1. Continue to monitor the current reviews and take opportunities to respond to 

consultations. 

2. Engage effectively with your current local auditor. Where there are issues with 

delivery (such as a delay in completion of the audit) ensure that they are raised with 

the engagement partner responsible and with PSAA.  

3. Respond effectively to recommendations raised by the local auditor. Monitor the 

implementation of any action plan to ensure the necessary changes are made. 

4. Ensure you have a robust framework for internal assurance. The local auditor’s 

opinion and report are just one source of assurance, albeit a very important one. 

Audit committees should be clear about how they get assurance and how robust 

these arrangements are. Pay attention in particular to the Annual Governance 

Statement, the head of internal audit’s annual opinion on governance, risk 

management and internal control and the quality of your risk management 

arrangements. 

5. If you haven’t already done so, complete an evaluation of your audit committee’s 

effectiveness. Are you fulfilling the requirements of your terms of reference and does 

your work have impact? Do you need any further support in performing your role? 

Issue 18 of Audit Committee Update and CIPFA’s publication, Audit Committees 

Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police contain guidance on undertaking a 

self-assessment of the audit committee. Alternatively, ask your head of internal audit 

for advice. 

 

Diana Melville 

Governance Advisor, CIPFA Better Governance Forum 

192

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-reporting-council-review-2018
https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/audit-committee-update/audit-committee-update-issue-18
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/audit-committees-practical-guidance-for-local-authorities-and-police-2018-edition-online
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/audit-committees-practical-guidance-for-local-authorities-and-police-2018-edition-online


10 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Recent Developments You May Need to Know About 

Regulations 

Overview and scrutiny: statutory guidance for councils and combined authorities 

The new guidance includes policies and practices authorities should adopt or should consider 

adopting when deciding how to carry out their overview and scrutiny functions. The 

guidance does not apply to audit committees but will be of interest to Councillors in their 

wider scrutiny roles or for understanding the contribution scrutiny makes to the 

effectiveness of governance. 

  

Consultations  

Consultation on the Code of Audit Practice 

The NAO has published its response to the consultation earlier this year on the development 

of the new Code. Further consultation will take place in the autumn as the new Code must 

be approved by Parliament for implementation from April 2020.   

CIPFA consultation on simplifying the accounts  

CIPFA is conducting a survey on local authority accounts and wants users, such as audit 

committee members, to complete a short online survey. The results of the survey will be 

used to inform CIPFA’s work to streamline the accounts and improve their accessibility for 

users. The online survey can be accessed here. 

 

Reports, recommendations and guidance 

Public Accounts Committee report: local government governance and 

accountability 

The Public Accounts Committee has concluded that the government has not done enough to 

ensure that, at a time when local authority budgets are under extreme pressure, 

governance is improved. The committee found that in some authorities governance is under 

strain: audit committees that do not provide sufficient assurance, ineffective internal audit, 

weak arrangements for the management of risk in local authorities’ commercial 

investments, and inadequate oversight and scrutiny.  

The committee has recommended that the department should assess the governance 

evidence base available to it and write to them by November 2019, setting out how it will 

address gaps it has identified. Public Accounts Committee 

Safeguarding public money: are you getting it right? 

Guidance from the Accounts Commission in Scotland emphasises the importance of 

councillor scrutiny of financial safeguards. The report explains the importance of internal 

controls for managing risk and highlights how mistakes and fraud can happen if controls are 

weak. The report also covers the roles of internal audit and the audit committee and 

includes a checklist of key questions. It is a useful resource for all public bodies. 

Safeguarding public money 

 

 

193

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-and-combined-authorities
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/accountable-accounting--cipfa-seeks-to-simplify-local-government-finances
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/public-accounts-committee/news-parliament-2017/local-government-governance-and-authority-report-published-17-19/
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/report/how-councils-work-safeguarding-public-money-are-you-getting-it-right


11 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Fraud and irregularity update 2018/19 

A summary of the cases of fraud and other irregularities at public bodies in Scotland. 

Common internal control weaknesses had provided the opportunity for the frauds to take 

place and public bodies are recommended to review their arrangements. Audit Scotland 

Counter-fraud arrangements in the Welsh public sector 

An overview for the National Assembly’s Public Accounts Committee of the counter-fraud 

landscape across the Welsh public sector. Wales Audit Office 

CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker 

CIPFA has completed its annual survey of levels of fraud and corruption detected across the 

public sector in the 2018/19 financial year. The results of this survey will be published in the 

autumn and will provide a valuable insight into current levels of detected fraud and 

corruption. CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker 

Policing and fire governance: guidance for police and crime panels 

 

The Local Government Association has published guidance on governance for police and 

crime panels to provide information about the statutory roles of panels and to highlight 

good practice. The guidance does not include any reference to the work of police audit 

committees. Police and crime panels 

 

Local Enterprise Partnerships: an update on progress 

 

The NAO has published a report reviewing progress in the improvement of governance and 

assurance. They conclude that the assurance framework is stronger, but it is not yet proven 

whether it will be effective in detecting and responding to governance failures. National 

Audit Office 

 

Guidance for audit committees on cloud services 

 

The NAO has published a guide to brief public sector audit committees about the use of 

cloud services. It suggests questions to ask at the planning, implementation and 

management stages. National Audit Office 

 

Financial Foresight  

 

Grant Thornton and CIPFA have produced a report, Financial Foresight, providing insights 

into financial sustainability at English local authorities. Understanding the issues will help 

councils in their longer term financial planning.  

 

Local Audit Quality Forum 

 

The Forum is run by Public Sector Audit Appointments to support council and police audit 

committees in their role. Presentations from the June 2019 Forum held in London are now 

available.  

 

Local government in Scotland: Challenges and performance 2019 

 

A report from Audit Scotland reviewing the performance of Scotland’s councils. It reports 

that most are managing to improve and maintain services but there are challenges ahead. 

194

https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/report/fraud-and-irregularity-update-201819
https://www.audit.wales/publication/counter-fraud-arrangements-welsh-public-sector
https://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fraud-and-corruption-tracker
https://www.local.gov.uk/policing-and-fire-governance-guidance-police-and-crime-panels
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-enterprise-partnerships-an-update/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-enterprise-partnerships-an-update/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/guidance-for-audit-committees-on-cloud-services/
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/empowering-councils-to-prepare-for-the-future/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/local-audit-quality-forum/
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/report/local-government-in-scotland-challenges-and-performance-2019


12 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Local Government Auditor’s Report 2019 

This report from the Northern Ireland Audit Office comments on a range of topics arising 

from audit work in local government bodies during the 2018/19 financial year. It highlights 

areas of strength and areas for improvement within local councils. 

 

Developments to Look Out For 

New CIPFA Financial Management Code 

In the autumn CIPFA will be publishing the Financial Management Code (FM Code). The FM 

Code is designed to support good practice in financial management and to assist local 

authorities in demonstrating their financial sustainability. For the first time The FM Code 

sets out the standards of financial management for local government. 

The FM Code includes the CIPFA Statement of Principles of Good Financial Management. 

These six principles have been developed by CIPFA in collaboration with senior leaders and 

practitioners who work within or have a stake in good local authority financial management. 

These principles are the benchmarks against which all financial management should be 

judged. CIPFA’s view is that all financial management practices should comply with these 

principles.  

The FM Code will apply from April 2020, but authorities are encouraged to ensure that their 

preparation of the 2020/21 budget and longer term strategies and plans aligns to the FM 

Code. 

 

  

195

https://www.niauditoffice.gov.uk/publications/local-government-auditors-report-2019


13 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Published by: 

CIPFA \ THE CHARTERED INSTITUTE OF PUBLIC FINANCE AND ACCOUNTANCY 

77 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN 

020 7543 5600 \ www.cipfa.org 

© 2019 CIPFA 

No responsibility for loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining from action as a result of any material in this 
publication can be accepted by the authors or publisher. 

While every care has been taken in the preparation of this publication, it may contain errors for which the publisher and 
authors cannot be held responsible.  

Apart from any fair dealing for the purposes of research or private study, or criticism or review, as permitted under the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988, this publication may be reproduced, stored or transmitted, in any form or by any 
means, only with the prior permission in writing of the publishers, or in the case of reprographic reproduction in 
accordance with the terms of licences issued by the Copyright Licensing Agency Ltd. Enquiries concerning reproduction 
outside those terms should be sent to the publishers at the above mentioned address. 

 

196

http://www.cipfa.org/


Document is Restricted

197

10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 24th July, 2019
	4 Deloitte: Annual Audit Letter, Audit for the year ended 31 March 2019
	4 - Appendix - Deloite Annual Audit Letter

	5 Control Environment Assurance
	5 - Appendix A - Risk Management Strategy Draft_Aug 2019
	5 - Appendix B - Counter Fraud Bribery and Corruption Policy and Strategy_Aug 2019
	5 - Appendix C - Counter Money Laundering Policy and Strategy_Aug 2019
	5 - Appendix D - Whistleblowing Policy_Aug 2019
	5 - Appendix E - Directed surveillance procedures _Aug 2019

	6 A Simple and Effective Governance Framework
	6 - Appendix 1 - A Simple and Effective Governance Framework

	7 Internal Audit Service Quarterly Performance Report
	7 - Appendix 1 - Audit Plan 2019-20
	7 - Appendix 2a - Assurance and Themes - Satisfactory
	7 - Appendix 2b - Assurance and Themes - Partial
	7 - Appendix 2c - Assurance and Summaries Other audits and grants
	7 - Appendix 2d - Assurance and Themes - Follow up audits
	7 - Appendix 3 - Survey Results

	8 Information Item
	10 Control Environment Assurance - Confidential Appendix

